
 
 

10.06.2025 Agenda - Page 1 of 4 
 

  
 
 
 
Watch Live via YouTube at:  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 

 
Citizens may sign to speak in person at the Council Meeting before the 
regular meeting starts on the Public Comments Sign in Sheet outside the 
Council Chambers Doors to address County Services and Operations.  
Presentations are limited to 3 minutes per person, and total input is 
limited to 30 minutes. Written comments must be submitted by 1PM on 
the meeting date by emailing comments@jaspercountysc.gov  
(Ordinance #08-17) 
 
To participate in a Public Hearing for a specific agenda item, email written 
public comments to comments@jaspercountysc.gov by 1:00PM on 
Monday, October 6, 2025, or sign in on the colored  
Public Hearing Sign in Sheet outside the Council Chambers Doors before 
the meeting starts. Public Hearing comments are limited to 3 minutes per 
person. 
 
Agenda support (e-packet) can be found at:  
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/government/council/county-council-
agendas-e-packets-and-minutes/ 
For more information, call 843-717-3696. Instructions may also be found 
at the Jasper County website www.jaspercountysc.gov 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
mailto:comments@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:comments@jaspercountysc.gov
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/government/council/county-council-agendas-e-packets-and-minutes/
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/government/council/county-council-agendas-e-packets-and-minutes/
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/


 
 

10.06.2025 Agenda - Page 2 of 4 
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
358 Third Ave.  

     Ridgeland, SC. 29936                                                                                                                                     

    Monday, October 6, 2025 

➢ Please silence your phones during the Meeting 

1.  Call the Council Meeting to Order by Chairman Kemp 
 
Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act:  In accordance with South Carolina Code 
of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were 
posted at least 24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on 
the county website, and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or 
organizations requesting notification. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
3. Approval of the Consent Agenda Items:  

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all Consent Agenda Items. Consent Agenda Items are not 
considered separately unless any Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request the item is 
placed at the end of the Public Hearings, Ordinances and Action Items.  

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: 
Approval of the Minutes of 05.19.2025; 05.28.2025; 06.02.2025; 06.04.2025; 06.09.2025; 06.11.2025 and 
06.12.2025 
 

 
4. Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
PRESENTATION: 
_________________________________________________________________________________________  
5. Kiwanis Club – John Costas, President of Hardeeville Jasper County Kiwanis Club 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
PROCLAMATION: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
6. Chief Russell Wells – Proclamation for Fire Prevention Week™, Proclaiming October 5–11, 2025, is 
“Charge into Fire Safety™: Lithium-Ion Batteries in Your Home.” 



 
 

10.06.2025 Agenda - Page 3 of 4 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7. CHAIRMAN KEMP’S COMMENTS:   
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
      CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

8. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance Number #08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in 
person at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:00PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be 
limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTIONS  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
9. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-53 Resolution of Jasper County Council to 
Approve the Procurement of Body Worn Cameras and Tasers for the Jasper County Detention Center 
through a Purchasing Cooperative with Omnia Partners. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
10. Kimberly Burgess – Public Hearing and 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-28 of Jasper County Council to 
Amend Jasper County Ordinance O-2024-13, the Fiscal Year 2025 Jasper County Budget, to Provide for 
Amendments to the Budget and to Carryover Approved Lapsing Funds to Fiscal Year 2026; to Amend Jasper 
County Ordinance O-2025-14, the Fiscal Year 2026 Jasper County Budget, to Provide for amendments to the 
Budget Resulting From the Carryover of Approved Lapsing Funds From Fiscal Year 2025; to Amend Certain 
Revenue Items; to Incorporate the Reclassification of Certain Line Items, to Amend for Fiscal Year 2026 
Expenditures, the Inclusion of Additional Appropriations, and Matters Related Thereto. (1st reading 
09.15.2025) 
 
11. Chief Wells – Approval and Acceptance of the Medical Control Physician Contract Renewal for 
Emergency Medical Services provision as required by statute.   
   
12. Kimberly Burgess and Chief Wells - Consideration and Acceptance of Proposal for the Replacement of 
Garage Doors at Fire Station #30 located at 1511 Grays Highway.  
______________________________________________________________________________________  
13. Administrator’s Report:  
  

14. Councilmember Comments and Discussion: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
15.     Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or  



 
 

10.06.2025 Agenda - Page 4 of 4 
 

release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or the appointment of a 
person to a public body – Treasurer and County Attorney  

 
(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim – Baske v Jasper County et. al;  
Tax Map # 087-00-04-001; Forensic Audit; FAA 
 
 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION 
SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY 
RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS. 
PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 
  Return to Open Session  
 

o 15.1 Action coming out of Executive Session  
 
*Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive session. 
 
16. Adjournment: 
 

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities, please  contact the Jasper 
County ADA & Civil Rights Coordinator, Tisha Williams in person at 358 Third Avenue, Ridgeland, South 
Carolina, by telephone at (843) 717-3690 or via email at jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.gov no later than 48 
hours prior to the scheduled meeting  
 

mailto:jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.gov




Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936 

   Monday, May 19, 2025 

Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell, Councilman Chris VanGeison and 
Councilman Joe Arzillo  
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Wanda Giles, Clerk to Council, County Attorney David 
Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Lisa Wagner, Chief Russell Wells, Jim Iwanicki, Danny Lucas, Earl Bostick and 
Videographer Jonathan Dunham.  
  
Call Workshop to Order: 
 
The workshop was called to order by Chairman Kemp. 
 
• FY 2026 Budget  
 
Ms. Burgess, along with Mr. Fulghum and Mr. Tedder were present to discuss the FY2026 Budget with Council. 
Mr. Fulghum distributed an employee roster to Council for their assistance with budget information. He also 
discussed how capital projects would be accounted for in the budget process. Mr. Fulghum passed out some 
information for Council and discussed the Budget Memo (Attachment “A”). The workshop discussed the 
budget schedule, Budget Performance Report; FY24/FY25 Budget Amendment and Lapsing Fund Ordinance 
#O-2024-22, and the Project Transaction Report. The topics of the Cherry Point Millage, budget item issues, 
millage, and similar information for the Jasper County FY 2026 budget were also discussed.   
 
Adjourn workshop. 
 
Motion to adjourn the workshop:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
    
1. Call to Order of the Jasper County Council Meeting by Chairman Kemp  
 

Chairman Kemp called the meeting to order. The Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information 
Act was read for the records as follows:  In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-
4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, 
and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting 
notification.  

 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

2. Pledge and Invocation: 
 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman Rowell. 
 
3. Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve the agenda:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.   
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PRESENTATION 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Chairman Kemp – Introduction of Maggie Knox – New Jasper Delegation Executive Assistant and Aide to 
the Delegation. 
 
Chairman Kemp introduced Maggie Knox as the New Jasper Delegation Executive Assistant and Aide to the 
Delegation. He noted that she works with Ellen Drake-Howard and that she used to be on the Hampton 
County Council. Ms. Knox explained her position and the items she had been working on. She discussed 
Constituent Services and noted that she was acting as a liaison for County grants. 
 
5.  Sheriff Chris Malphrus – Sheriff Malphrus provided a General Update to keep Council updated on what is 
going on in the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Sheriff Malphrus was present to provide a General Update to keep Council updated on what is going on in the 
Sheriff’s Office. He said in January when he had taken over, they were understaffed and noted that now they 
are currently at a qualified full staff level. He also discussed (ICAC) Internet Crimes Against Children, and noted 
that there were approximately 40 cases that were about three years old which were outstanding, when his 
term began. He noted that they were working through those along with their current cases. He noted they had 
7000 calls for service, 250 criminal charges, and now they were at 7 to 8 deputies per shift. He also noted that 
they had been a 45% increase on drug arrest. He discussed the AED’s that had previously been purchased. He 
noted that all Deputies were not trained on them, and some units were still being held in a closet when they 
found them. He went on to say that all the Deputies had been trained on the AED’s and they had been put into 
Patrol Vehicles. He stated that all the Deputies had now received Narcan Training, and that they had updated 
their weapon system. He discussed the joint SWAT Team with the City of Hardeeville and noted that they did 
have a MOU between them. He also mentioned that many of the Deputies were not trained to use the Stop 
Sticks previously but noted that now all Deputies had been trained for this use and they were placed in the 
Patrol Vehicles. He discussed the community events they were working on, noted that they were currently at 
81 to 85% of their budget, which put them below their budget at this time. He mentioned the current 
population and the number of current deputies. 
 
  

                                                                        CHAIRMAN’S COMMENTS                                                                
None 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
__________________________________________________________________________________________     
Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance Number #08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in 
person at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:00PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be 
limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
The following people signed up to speak for public comments: 
Name:    Regarding the subject of: 
Michael Jenkins  Coosawhatchie Elem. And Senior Center 
Don Newton   Budget and Coosawhatchie School 
Hedy Frazier   Coosawhatchie Elem. School Rebuilding 
Sharon Frazier   Coosawhatchie Elem. School Rebuilding 
Helen Benson   Coosawhatchie Elem. School Rebuilding 
Pastor Wilson Galloway  Coosawhatchie Emergency and Senior Center 
Patricia Hicks Dupont  Coosawhatchie Emergency and Senior Center 
Carolyn Smith   Coosawhatchie Senior Center 
Juanita Devon   Coosawhatchie School – Signed up but did not speak 
Dilana Dupont   Coosawhatchie School – Signed up but did not speak 
John Youmans               Coosawhatchie School – Signed up but did not speak 
Gene Cecarelli   Primary Election - – Signed up but did not speak on this matter 
Michael Spence  Signed up but did not speak 
Janet Spence   Signed up but did not speak 
Darriel Hughee  Coosawhatchie Community Center 
Michelle Hughee  Signed up but did not speak 
Maggie Knox   Spoke during the Introduction to Council as the Aide to the Delegation   
Richard Jackson   Coosawhatchie 
Charles Youmans  Signed up but did not speak 
Lyda L. Garvin   Coosawhatchie Senior Center 
Rosetta Horton  Coosawhatchie School 
Mr. Porter   Coosawhatchie Emergency and Senior Center 
Pricella Smith   Coosawhatchie Center 
Mildred Woods  Coosawhatchie Center 
Frances Smith   Coosawhatchie Elementary School 
Linda Newton   Coosawhatchie Emergency and Senior Center 
Chester Newton Sr.  Signed up but did not speak 
Jack Devore   Signed up but did not speak 
Robert Drake   Signed up but did not speak    
Annie Brown   Signed up but did not speak 
Justine Brantley  Signed up but did not speak 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

6. Lisa Wagner – Public Hearing and Consideration of 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-12 to Amend the 
Jasper County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 25 – Article III, Naming and Addressing of Roads, Section 123 
Definitions, Section 126 New Road Names, and Section 127 Renaming Roads so as to make minor revisions 
for clarification purposes and to provide consistency with state law. (1st reading 05.05.2025)  



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

 
Ms. Wagner was present to review and discuss this consideration of the 2nd reading of  Ordinance #O-2025-12 
to Amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 25 – Article III, Naming and Addressing of Roads, 
Section 123 Definitions, Section 126 New Road Names, and Section 127 Renaming Roads so as to make minor 
revisions for clarification purposes and to provide consistency with state law. She noted that the intent of the 
Ordinance is to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 25, Article III, Section 123 (Definitions), 
Section 126 (New Road Names), and Section 127 (Renaming Roads). The purpose of this amendment she 
mentioned was to provide clarity and consistency with state law as it relates to the naming of roads.  
 
She further noted that Title 6, Chapter 29, Section 1200 of the SC Code of Laws delegates road naming 
authority to the local Planning Commission. In accordance with the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, the 
address program administrator is responsible for the interpretation and administration of Jasper County’s 
Naming and Addressing of Roads Ordinance since they are the personnel that keeps inventory of the road 
names and addressing data.  
 
For this request Ms. Wagner noted that the specific changes were very minor in nature and are outlined as 
follows:  
 
• Section 123 – Definitions: This section includes adding language to the definition of “Concurrence” to 

make clear that the Planning Commission only concurs if they fail to take action after two meetings once 
the road name petition has been submitted to them for review. Language is added to “County Roads,” 
which makes reference to the revised Master List of County Roads dated February 2017. The definition of 
“Private Roads,” includes replacing the clerk of courts office with the office of register of deeds.  

 
• Section 126 – New Road Names: This section restructures the first sentence in paragraph #8, under 

Section 25-126 to remove “mobile home roads” and the requirement for three (3) homes to be located on 
the new road. New roads in subdivisions or developments should be named prior to any structures being 
built or accessed by a new road.  

 
• Section 127 – Renaming Roads: This section changes the method of initiating road name changes from 

three methods to four methods to include the address program administrator. Language is added to public 
notice requirements to include notice to be posted on the county’s website or social media page when a 
road name change is requested. The last paragraph in Section 25-127, replaces the office of the register of 
mesne conveyance or clerk of court with the office of the register of deeds.  

 
Mrs. Wagner stated that the Planning Commission reviewed this ordinance amendment at their April 15, 
2025, Meeting and recommends approval of the proposed amendment as outlined in the attached Ordinance. 
The public hearing was opened but there were no comments, so the public hearing was closed.  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
7. David Tedder – Consideration of the 1st Reading BY TITLE ONLY of an Ordinance of the County of Jasper, 
Amending the Fiscal Year 2025 – 2026 Jasper County Budget as Originally Adopted to Reflect Such 
Modifications to the Adopted Millage Rates, Appropriations and Revenues as may be deemed necessary 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

and appropriate to Reflect Such Additional Information as may become available from the State, the Jasper 
County School District or Others, or Actions of the County Council Regarding Debt and Operational Matters 
Subsequent to the Adoption of the 2025-2026 Jasper County Budget  but Prior to the Issuance of the 2025 
County Ad Valorem Tax Billings, and Repealing All Ordinances or Parts of Ordinances In Conflict Therewith, 
and Matters Related Thereto.  
 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading BY TITLE ONLY of an 
ordinance of the County of Jasper, amending the Fiscal Year 2025 – 2026 Jasper County Budget as originally 
adopted to reflect such modifications to the adopted Millage Rates, appropriations and revenues as may be 
deemed necessary and appropriate to reflect such additional information as may become available from the 
state, the Jasper County School District or others, or actions of the County Council regarding debt and 
operational matters subsequent to the adoption of the 2025-2026 Jasper County Budget  but prior to the 
issuance of the 2025 County Ad Valorem Tax Billings, and repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict therewith. Mr. Tedder explained that this was being done so that they could fix the millage before it is 
set and before property taxes are mailed out. Chairman Kemp noted that he had suggested this so it could be 
done by August prior to the issuance of the tax bills.  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
8. David Tedder –  Consideration of the 1st Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-10 an Ordinance authorizing the 
sale to 719 Holdings, LLC of a 2.158 acre parcel, more or less, being subdivided out of the original 19.09 acre 
Parcel identified as Parcel B as shown on a Plat recorded at Plat Book 27 at Page 80, being a portion of tax 
parcel 048-00-01-005,  and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute such contracts, 
amendments, deeds and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the sale to 719 
Holdings, LLC, or its assigns, and matters related thereto. (Public Hearing Only 04.07.2025) 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-10 
an Ordinance authorizing the sale to 719 Holdings, LLC of a 2.158 acre parcel, more or less, being subdivided 
out of the original 19.09 acre Parcel identified as Parcel B as shown on a Plat recorded at Plat Book 27 at Page 
80, being a portion of tax parcel 048-00-01-005,  and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute 
such contracts, amendments, deeds and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the 
sale to 719 Holdings, LLC, or its assigns. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
9. Kimberly Burgess – Public Hearing and consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-13 an 
Ordinance of the County of Jasper, Amending The Fiscal Year 2024 – 2025 Jasper County Budget as Originally 
Adopted June 3, 2024 by Ordinance No. O-2024-13 (As Amended) in Accordance With the Local Government 
Code of the State of South Carolina and the Ordinances and Rules of the County of Jasper, South Carolina; 
Where the Total Amount Appropriated is Increased by $2,989,000 to a Total of $63,351.353, with Revenue 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

Amended to Show an Increase of $2,989,000 to a Total of $63,351,353, Appropriating the Various Amounts 
Thereof, and Repealing All Ordinances or Parts of Ordinances in Conflict Therewith, and Providing an 
Effective Date.  
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-13 
an ordinance of the County of Jasper, amending the Fiscal Year 2024 – 2025 Jasper County Budget as originally 
adopted June 3, 2024 by Ordinance No. O-2024-13 (As Amended) in accordance with the local government 
Code of the State of South Carolina and the Ordinances and Rules of the County of Jasper, South Carolina; 
Where the Total Amount Appropriated is Increased by $2,989,000 to a Total of $63,351.353, with Revenue 
Amended to Show an Increase of $2,989,000 to a Total of $63,351,353, Appropriating the Various Amounts 
Thereof, and Repealing All Ordinances or Parts of Ordinances in Conflict Therewith. Mr. Fulghum asked to 
remove the 2nd reading and do a public hearing only. The public hearing was opened but there were no 
comments, so the public hearing was closed.  
 
Motion to postpone this ordinance until a date by the Administrator was set:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
10. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance to provide for the levy of tax for 
public purposes in Jasper County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2025 and ending June 30th 2026 and to 
make appropriations for said purposes; to adopt and approve the Jasper County capital and operations 
budget for fiscal year 2025-2026, to adopt and approve the Jasper County School District capital and 
operations budget for fiscal year 2025–2026; to provide for the levy of taxation for fiscal year 2025–
2026;  to limit the disbursements by the county treasurer to those appropriated by law; to provide that 
expenditures not exceed appropriations; to authorize tax anticipation notes; to make authorization of 
certain transfers; to provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to codify Jasper County rates and 
fees; to provide for lapsing funds and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to require certain 
agencies and departments to file accountings; to require the treasurer to sign general fund checks; to 
provide special rules for travel and training disbursements; to provide for travel reimbursements; to provide 
compliance with act no. 317 of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to provide for county 
commission and committee stipends; to provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to provide 
for effective date of this ordinance, and matters related thereto.   
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance to provide 
for the levy of tax for public purposes in Jasper County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2025 and ending 
June 30th 2026 and to make appropriations for said purposes; to adopt and approve the Jasper County capital 
and operations budget for fiscal year 2025-2026, to adopt and approve the Jasper County School District 
capital and operations budget for fiscal year 2025–2026; to provide for the levy of taxation for fiscal year 
2025–2026;  to limit the disbursements by the county treasurer to those appropriated by law; to provide that 
expenditures not exceed appropriations; to authorize tax anticipation notes; to make authorization of certain 
transfers; to provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to codify Jasper County rates and fees; to 
provide for lapsing funds and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to require certain agencies and 
departments to file accountings; to require the treasurer to sign general fund checks; to provide special rules 
for travel and training disbursements; to provide for travel reimbursements; to provide compliance with act 
no. 317 of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to provide for county commission and 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

committee stipends; to provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to provide for an effective date 
of this ordinance.  
 
Ms. Burgess noted that at the 06.02.2025 meeting, this item would be a public hearing only for this item and 
the 2nd reading would be held on 06.14.2025. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
11. Andrew Fulghum – Consideration of engagement letter for legal services provided by Pope Flynn Group 
for issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2025. 
 
Mr. Fulghum was present to review and discuss the consideration of engagement letter for legal services 
provided by Pope Flynn Group for issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2025. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison  
Vote: 3 yes votes and 1 no vote by Councilman Rowell 
The motion passed 
 
12. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance to Provide for The Issuance And 
Sale of not Exceeding Seven Million Dollars ($7,000,000) Aggregate Principal Amount Of General Obligation 
Bonds of Jasper County, South Carolina in One or More Series, to Prescribe The Purposes For Which The 
Proceeds Shall Be Expended, to Provide For The Payment Thereof, and to Provide For Other Matters Related 
Thereto. (Pope Flynn Group) 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance to provide 
for the issuance and sale of not exceeding seven million dollars ($7,000,000) aggregate principal amount of 
General Obligation Bonds of Jasper County, South Carolina in one or more series, to prescribe the purposes for 
which the proceeds shall be expended, to provide for the payment. 
 
Motion to approve and move forward not to exceed $7,000,000: Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
  
13. Andrew Fulghum – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance to authorize a Comprehensive 
Agreement and Lease with Palmetto Animal League for the use of that real property located at 401 Carters 
Mill Road, Ridgeland, South Carolina. 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance to 
authorize a Comprehensive Agreement and Lease with Palmetto Animal League for the use of that real 
property located at 401 Carters Mill Road, Ridgeland, South Carolina. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

Second:  Chairman Kemp 
Vote: 3 yes votes and 1 no vote by Councilman Rowell 
The motion passed 
  
14. Danny Lucas – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance to authorize Jasper County to enter into 
a facilities use letter of agreement with the Lowcountry Composite Group of the Civil Air Patrol for the 
periodic use of a portion of the Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport.  
 
Mr. Lucas was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance to authorize 
Jasper County to enter into a facilities use letter of agreement with the Lowcountry Composite Group of the 
Civil Air Patrol for the periodic use of a portion of the Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport.  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
  
15. Danny Lucas – Ridgeland (3J1) - 2025 Projects Grant Application.  
 
Mr. Lucas was present to review and discuss the consideration of the Ridgeland (3J1) - 2025 Projects Grant 
Application. After some discussion, Mr. Lucas said he would bring it back to the next County Council Meeting 
and that he would schedule a Special Called Meeting with the Airport Commission 
 
16. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of Parking Lot Bid for Thomas Heyward Cemetery.  
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the Parking Lot Bid for Thomas Heyward 
Cemetery. She noted that the JC250 Grant Funds would pay for this. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison  
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 

17. Administrator’s Report: Mr. Fulghum reviewed the information from his report. There were no Action 
Items requiring a vote from the Council in the Administrator’s Report 
 

18. Approval of the Minutes 03.20.2025 

Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 ` 

19. Councilmember Comments and Discussion: Councilmember Comments were given but there were no 
comments that required action. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

Chairman Kemp noted that he had some changes for Executive Session. 
 
He wanted to remove Tax Map # 063-24-01-003 from Executive Session Item # 2; Under Item #2 add Airport 
Leases; Baske vs Jasper County; and Nickel Plate; and add Item # 1 under Executive Session as Personnel 
Discussion. 
 
Motion to go into executive session to discuss the items that Chairman added and removed per his verbal 
statement: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
20. Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or release  
      of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or the appointment of a person to a  
      public body – Personnel Discussion 
 
(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     
      purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
      pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
      privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
      situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim –                    
     Airport Leases; Baske vs Jasper County; Nickel Plate MCIP 

 
    ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION 
SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO 
EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE ADVISED 
THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

 
Return to Open Session: 
 
Motion to return to regular session:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
20.1 Action coming out of Executive Session – None 
 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  
 
 
 



Minutes - 05.19.2025  
 

For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
_________________________________   
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council 
 
       ________________________________________  
       John A. Kemp 
       Chairman  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


OFFICE OF THE JASPER COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

358 Third Avenue - Courthouse Square - Post Office Box 114 9
Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 - 843-717-3690 - Fax: 843-726-7800 

Andrew P. Fulghum 
County Administrator 

afulghum@jaspercountysc.gov 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

MEMORANDUM 

The Honorable Jasper County Council 

Andrew P. Fulghum, ICMA-CM, County Administrator 

Kim Burgess, CPA, GFOA, Director of Administrative Services 

May 19, 2025 

SUBJECT: Recommended Fiscal Year 2026 Budget 

One of my statutory duties is to prepare for your consideration an annual operating budget. 
Enclosed please find a recommended budget for Fiscal Year 2026. The general fund budget is balanced 
and totals $66,912,500. County debt is $1,194,259. The total county budget is $68,106,759. State 
mandated expenses (net of revenues and state supplements)= $18,476,025 or 25% of total expenditures. 
The value of a mill is $317,200, which is an increase of approximately 22% over the previous fiscal year. 

The budget proposes a total millage rate equal to FY25, maintains FY25 budgeted expenditures 
with exceptions noted below, prioritizes personnel, adds 5 net new employees and provides a New 
Personnel "allowance" for the Sheriff ($1,000,000) and the Clerk of Court ($38,000), maintains "Agency 
Appropriations" at the FY25 amounts with the exception of the increase previously approved by the 
Council for the Solicitor and a mandated increase by the state for the Medically Indigent Assistance 
Program, both of which result in an increase of $386,596. The proposed FY26 budget includes 
$4,175,000 capital expenditures (including $1,733,000 of equipment.) The budget is based on the most 
complete information we have to date, and funds the following items: 

Revenue-Total revenue is $6,550,147 or 10.9% greater than the FY25 amended budget (AMB.) 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Property tax revenue is budgeted $41,969,000 net of $4,416,800 LOST credit. 

The LOST credit revenue is $899,100 greater than FY25 AMB primarily because there is 
carry-over credit from the prior year which increases the estimated credit to the taxpayer. 

Local government fund allocation is $68,200 greater than FY25 AMB at $1,418,500 . 

Bond proceeds of $1,194,259 are included as revenue to partially pay for budgeted capital 
items in the operating budget. There was no bond proceeds budgeted in the prior year 
budget. 

The Cherry Point Fire District millage rate is increased to 63.9 from 31, a difference of32.9 
mills, to off-set the total budgeted expenditures for the fire district. The value of a mill for 
Cherry Point Fire District increased $2,337 to $34,181 from $31,844. 

The cash carry-forward amount to balance the budget is $2,805,741 which is $7,011,862 less 
than FY25 AMB. 

Page 11 

Attachment "A"







Minutes – 05.28.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

Wednesday, May 28, 2025 
Minutes 

 
Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell, Councilman Chris VanGeison and 
Councilman Joe Arzillo  
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney David 
Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Lisa Wagner, James Iwanicki, Danny Lucas, Chief Russell Wells, and Videographer 
Jonathan Dunham.   
 
     
1. Call to Order of the Jasper County Council Meeting by Chairman Kemp  

 
Chairman Kemp called the meeting to order. The Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act was 
listed on the agenda for the records as follows:  In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 
30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, 
and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting 
notification.  

 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman Rowell 
 
Motion to approve the agenda:  Councilman 
Second:  Councilman  
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.   

 
Jasper County FY 2025-2026 Budget  
 

• Clerk of Court – R. Keith Horton 
Clerk of Court Horton discussed his budget requests, transparency in the Clerk of Court’s Office, and using 
funds frugally but still maintaining a good court system. Some of the topics he discussed were: 

 Title IV Funds 
 Family Court collections and number of cases  
 New positions, personnel and staff numbers 
 Civil Court 
 Previous case load that was left when he took over 
 Audit Service 
 COLA 
 Computer Equipment 



Minutes – 05.28.2025  
 

 Office Supplies 
 Travel 
 Contract Labor 
 Disc Storage 
 Vehicle request 
 Security 

 
He also noted that they were no longer able to use their 2nd Courtroom for Family Court. He stated that 
they were currently using the Council Chambers and mentioned that the request for an additional person 
was due to this reason. He finished his review of his budget request and thanked Council for their 
consideration.  
 
• Sheriff’s Department – Sheriff Malphrus 

 
Sheriff Malphrus discussed his overall budget noting items that were included in the County FY2025-2026 
Budget. Sheriff Malphrus also discussed and explained that when he discussed today hiring a Deputy that 
this cost was all inclusive in the amount of $127,000.00 to $130,000.00, which included all of the following: 

 Salary 
 Benefits 
 Equipment 
 Vehicle 

      He also provided a handout to the Council for his New Personnel Budget Request, which is attached as  
      Attachment “A” (this information on the handout includes salaries but does not include fringe benefits).   
 County Administrative Campus and their personnel requests. 
 Courthouse Campus and their personnel needs. 
 Magistrate Court and their personnel needs and concerns 
 Additional metal detectors in the Administrative Bldg. and Courthouse 
 Weapons and equipment for offsite staff 
 County Administrative Campus 

o He noted that this included the 2 personnel that were in place on January 21, 2025, for the 
Administrative Building. He noted that with these positions they can further provide 2 Deputies 
in the Main Courthouse, 1 Deputy in Magistrate Court and 1 Supervisor alternating between 
the locations as needed,   

 Traffic Team and their personnel requests. 
 Patrol Division and their personnel requests. 
 School Resource Officer. 
 Special Victim’s Investigator. 
 Narcotics Investigator. 
 Crime Scene Technician 

 
Mr. Fulghum noted at the conclusion of the Sheriff’s Budget Review that Ms. Burgess was prepared to give a 
quick overview, that she had passed out a hard copy, and was prepared to review the changes. Chairman 
Kemp noted that when we have people coming in, Ms. Burgess was separating them out and they didn’t have 
to go through the full package to find each division. She noted that when it is done this way that Council could 
see the revenue included for that department. She noted that there were changes from the first reading to the 
upcoming second reading on June 4th. She also discussed the Cherry Point tax revenue and noted that they 



Minutes – 05.28.2025  
 

took millage down to 31 and that budget change amount. She discussed property taxes, auto taxes, watercraft 
and that budget change amount. She discussed items such as the Local Option Sales Tax; FILOT; Cash Carry 
Forward; Debt (including special revenue bonds, debt and interest; payoff of the 2014 series; and grant 
awards were also discussed. Other items on the pertaining to the budget were also reviewed and addressed. 
     
Adjourn: 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  
 
For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 

 
Respectfully submitted:      

    
  _______________________________________ 
  Wanda H. Giles 
  Clerk to Council        

                                                                                                        
____________________________________   

           John A. Kemp 
                                                                                               Chairman     
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA




 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

City of Hardeeville City Hall  
     205 Main Street, Hardeeville, SC. 29927                                                                                                                                     

   Monday, June 2, 2025 

Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Councilman Chris VanGeison and Councilman Joe Arzillo 
Absent: Vice Chairman Joey Rowell  
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney David 
Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Lisa Wagner, James Iwanicki, Danny Lucas, Chief Russell Wells, and Videographer 
Jonathan Dunham.   
 
The workshop was called to order at 5PM by Chairman Kemp. 

• FY 2026 Budget  

o Auditor 

Ms. Horton was present to review and discuss her budget request with Council for the upcoming Fiscal Year. 
She gave an overview of the Auditor’s Office and the responsibilities of that office. She also reviewed the types 
of requests that her office handled for the County and Citizens. She reviewed information on her budget 
requests and discussed those requests with Council.   

o Treasurer 

Mr. Skinner was present to review and discuss the budget request of the Treasurer Office with Council for 
FY2025-FY2026. He noted a couple of changes for the Council. He discussed his line items and the information 
pertaining to his requests. He also reviewed the services that the Treasurer’s office provided for the County 
and the Citizens of Jasper County. 

o Election and Voter Registration Board 

Director Jeanine Bostick was present to review and discuss the budget request for the Election and Voter 
Registration Board. She discussed her previous budget and noted that they have had several Special Elections 
and how costly it had been. She also reviewed the type of requests that her office handled for the citizens and 
County. 

o General Discussion   

Ms. Burgess and Mr. Fulghum reviewed information for Council regarding the FY2026 Budget to include 
information on the salaries, FICA, Retirement, Cash Carry Forward, and other changes that Council wanted 
before this item was brought back to them for review.  
 

Adjourn workshop. 

 

Motion to adjourn: Councilman VanGeison 

Second: Councilman Arzillo 

Vote: Unanimous 

The motion passed. 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

1. Call the Meeting to Order by Chairman Kemp 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Kemp. The Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of 
Information Act was read as follows for the record. In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, 
Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, 
and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting 
notification. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman VanGeison. 
 
3. Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
 
Chairman Kemp noted that they needed to approve the agenda, but he would like to remove Item # 6 and 
Item # 8 from the agenda.   
Motion to approve with the deletion of Item # 6 and Item # 8: Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

4.                                                                        CHAIRMAN’S COMMENTS 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
__________________________________________________________________________________________     
Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance Number #08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in 
person at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:00PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be 
limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
The following people signed up to speak under Citizen Comments: 
Charene Uhrmann discussed a FOIA request. 
Vil Vaitas discussed jurisdiction. 
Janice Pinto discussed the Monroe tract. 
Ryan Shaster discussed the sand mine. 
Abigail Barna-Ashley discussed library and summer reading. 
Mike Anderson discussed the Monroe mine. 
Courtney Flexon discussed Levy Road. 
Hedy Frazier discussed Coosawhatchie Community Center. 
Chad Scott discussed zoning and building.  
Lorraine Bond spoke of her concerns about Levy Road. 
Lauren Flexon spoke on Article II and rezoning concerns. 
Michael Lewis spoke on Monroe mining and Levy Community.  
__________________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

5. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-35 Approving the State Accommodations Tax 
Advisory Recommendations and Authorizing the Award of Funds for State Accommodations Tax Requests for 
Fiscal Year 2025 – 2026. 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of Resolution #R-2025-35 with Council 
Approving the State Accommodations Tax Advisory Recommendations and Authorizing the Award of Funds for 
State Accommodations Tax Requests for Fiscal Year 2025 – 2026. Council discussed their concerns over the 
amount for the Chamber of Commerce 
 
Motion to approve with the deletion of the amount of $20,000 for the Chamber of Commerce:  Councilman 
VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo  
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.   
 
6. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-36 a Resolution of Jasper County Council to Approve 
Special Services Contract with Stifel to Serve as the Municipal Advisor for the Proposed Bond Ordinance Currently 
Under Consideration by the County Council. 
 
This item was removed from the agenda. 
 
7. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-37 a Resolution for the Emergency Purchase and 
Installation of Trane Heat Pump and Air Handler for the Jasper County Detention Center from Howell Chase 
Heating and Air Conditioning. 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of Resolution R-2025-37 for the Emergency 
Purchase and Installation of Trane Heat Pump and Air Handler for the Jasper County Detention Center from 
Howell Chase Heating and Air Conditioning. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.   
 
8. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-38 a Resolution for the Sole Source Procurement and 
Revision of the Current Contract with Motorola Solutions for Updated Software and Interfaces Required to with 
the State of South Carolina’s new Reporting Software.   
 
This item was removed from the agenda. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
9. Lisa Wagner – Consideration of 3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-12 to Amend the Jasper County Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 25 – Article III, Naming and Addressing of Roads, Section 123 Definitions, Section 126 
New Road Names, and Section 127 Renaming Roads so as to make minor revisions for clarification purposes 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

and to provide consistency with state law. (1st reading 05.05.2025, Public Hearing and 2nd reading 
05.19.2025) 
 
Ms. Wagoner was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-12 
to Amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 25 – Article III, Naming and Addressing of Roads, 
Section 123 Definitions, Section 126 New Road Names, and Section 127 Renaming Roads so as to make minor 
revisions for clarification purposes and to provide consistency with state law.  
 
Ms. Wagner noted that the intent of this Ordinance is to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, 
Chapter 25, Article III, Section 123 (Definitions), Section 126 (New Road Names), and Section 127 (Renaming 
Roads). The purpose of this amendment is to provide clarity and consistency with state law as it relates to the 
naming of roads. Title 6, Chapter 29, Section 1200 of the SC Code of Laws delegates road naming authority to 
the local Planning Commission. In accordance with the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, the address 
program administrator is responsible for the interpretation and administration of Jasper County’s Naming and 
Addressing of Roads Ordinance since they are the personnel that keeps inventory of the road names and 
addressing data.  
 
She noted that the specific changes are very minor in nature and are outlined below:  
Section 123 – Definitions: This section includes adding language to the definition of “Concurrence” to make 
clear that the Planning Commission only concurs if they fail to take action after two meetings once the road 
name petition has been submitted to them for review. Language is added to “County Roads,” which makes 
reference to the revised Master List of County Roads dated February 2017. The definition of “Private Roads,” 
includes replacing the clerk of courts office with the office of register of deeds.  
Section 126 – New Road Names: This section restructures the first sentence in paragraph #8, under Section 25-
126 to remove “mobile home roads” and the requirement for three (3) homes to be located on the new road. 
New roads in subdivisions or development should be named prior to structures being built or accessed by a 
new road.   
 
Section 127 – Renaming Roads: This section changes the method of initiating road name changes from three 
methods to four methods to include the address program administrator. Language is added to public notice 
requirements to include notice to be posted on the county’s website and social media page when a road name 
change is requested. The last paragraph in Section 25-127, replaces the office of the register of mesne 
conveyance or clerk of court with the office of the register of deeds.  
 
Ms. Wagner stated that the Planning Commission reviewed this ordinance amendment at their April 15, 2025, 
Meeting and recommends approval of the proposed amendment as outlined in the attached Ordinance 
  
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.   
  
10. Lisa Wagner – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance to amend Article 9:6, Accessory 
Structures, of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, to allow increased building sizes for accessory structures 
in the Residential, Rural Preservation, and Resource Conservation Zoning Districts. 
 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

Ms. Wagoner was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance to amend 
Article 9:6, Accessory Structures, of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, to allow increased building sizes for 
accessory structures in the Residential, Rural Preservation, and Resource Conservation Zoning Districts. 
 
Ms. Wagner noted that Article 9:6 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, regulates accessory structures, 
which are defined as any structure over 120 square feet that supports approved accessory use. Currently, the 
ordinance has a size limitation for accessory buildings in the Residential, Rural Preservation and Resource 
Conservation Zoning Districts. While the size limitation for accessory structures may be reasonable and 
appropriate for some areas within the Residential Zoning District, such as properties located within 
subdivisions, small lot sizes, and near the municipalities, the size limitation creates problems for property 
owners of larger lots in the rural areas of the County. The proposed ordinance as amended would allow 
additional square footage for accessory structures depending on the lot size. The proposed ordinance would 
amend Articles 9:6.2 and 9:6.4 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance as outlined in the Staff Report to the 
Council which was in the agenda e-packet. Council discussed this matter and wanted to amend this and send it 
back to the Planning Commission. Mr. Tedder suggested if Council wished to do, that they ask the Planning 
Commission for a recommendation on the size limitation for a half-acre lot, so they had something firm to 
work with.  
 
Motion to amend and send back to the Planning Commission with the statement as Attorney Tedder stated: 
Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
Chairman Kemp noted that the motion had passed, and it would be rendered to the Planning Commission 
again. 
 
11. Lisa Wagner – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map of 
Jasper County so as to transfer two properties located at 2870 and 2940 Levy Road, bearing Jasper County 
Tax Map Numbers 038-00-06-017 and 038-00-06-208 from the Residential Zoning District to the Community 
Commercial Zoning District on the Jasper County Official Zoning Map. 
 
Ms. Wagoner was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance to amend 
the Official Zoning Map of Jasper County so as to transfer two properties located at 2870 and 2940 Levy Road, 
bearing Jasper County Tax Map Numbers 038-00-06-017 and 038-00-06-208 from the Residential Zoning 
District to the Community Commercial Zoning District on the Jasper County Official Zoning Map. 
 
Ms. Wagner noted that this was a zoning map amendment request to have two properties designated as 
Community Commercial. The subject properties consist of 1 acre and .47 acres and are located at 2870 and 
2940 Levy Road. Both properties are currently zoned Residential. Both properties are developed with 
residential structures. The applicant recently purchased both properties and would like to re-develop the 
properties to be used as a commercial office. According to the 2018 Jasper County Comprehensive Plan, the 
Future Land Use Map identifies this area as “Rural Transition,” with the intersection of Levy Road and S. Okatie 
Highway (Highway 315) being designated as a hamlet. Rural Transition areas are located in southern Jasper 
County. Any development should be respectful and complement the scale and character of the area. The 
Comprehensive Plan recommends creating a special area plan for the Levy hamlet as it is at risk of losing its 
character in the face of new development. The adjacent parcels are zoned Community Commercial and 
Residential.  Adjacent land uses are commercial development and single family residential. 
 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

She mentioned that the subject properties are accessed by Levy Road, which is a two-lane state-maintained 
road classified as a local road. The applicant reached out to neighbors and was able to obtain two letters of 
support. Based on the size of the properties, any commercial development would be small-scale and will not 
allow for large scale development.  
 
The Planning Commission she stated had reviewed this application at their May 13, 2025, Meeting and 
recommended approval to have the properties designated as Community Commercial. It should be noted that 
Dr. Butler voted in opposition because she is not in favor of expanding Community Commercial zoning into the 
Residential area near a Hamlet. Chairman Kemp and Council discussed their concerns.  
 
Motion to disapprove:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
12.  David Tedder – Consideration of the 1st reading of an Ordinance authorizing the sale to Elite Marble 
Holdings, LLC of a 2.79 acre parcel, more or less, being subdivided out of the original 25.52 acre Parcel 
identified as Parcel D as shown on a Plat recorded at Plat Book 27 at Page 80, being a portion of tax parcel 
048-00-01-007,  and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute such contracts, amendments, 
deeds and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the sale to Elite Marble Holdings 
LLC, or its assigns, and matters related thereto. 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an ordinance authorizing 
the sale to Elite Marble Holdings, LLC of a 2.79 acre parcel, more or less, being subdivided out of the original 
25.52 acre Parcel identified as Parcel D as shown on a Plat recorded at Plat Book 27 at Page 80, being a portion 
of tax parcel 048-00-01-007,  and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute such contracts, 
amendments, deeds and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the sale to Elite 
Marble Holdings LLC, or its assigns. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
13. Kimberly Burgess – Public Hearing and consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-13  of the 
County of Jasper, Amending the Fiscal Year 2024 – 2025 Jasper County Budget as Originally Adopted June 3, 
2024 By Ordinance No. O-2024-13 (As Amended) In Accordance with the Local Government Code of the 
State of South Carolina and the Ordinances and Rules of the County of Jasper, South Carolina; Where the 
Total Amount Appropriated is Increased By $2,047,141 to a Grand Total Of $65,529,893.81, With Revenue 
and Other Financing Sources Amended to Show an Increase of $2,047,141 to a Grand Total of 
$65,529,893.81, Appropriating the Various Amounts Thereof, and Repealing all Ordinances or Parts of 
Ordinances in Conflict Therewith, and Providing an Effective Date. (1st reading 05.05.2025; Public Hearing 
only on 05.19.2025; vote on this item was postponed at the 05.19.2025 meeting)    
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-13  of 
the County of Jasper, Amending the Fiscal Year 2024 – 2025 Jasper County Budget as originally adopted June 
3, 2024 by Ordinance No. O-2024-13 (as amended) in accordance with the local government Code of the State 
of South Carolina and the ordinances and rules of the County of Jasper, South Carolina; where the total 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

amount appropriated is increased by $2,047,141 to a grand total of $65,529,893.81, with Revenue and Other 
Financing Sources amended to show an increase of $2,047,141 to a grand total of $65,529,893.81, 
appropriating the various amounts thereof, and repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
therewith, and providing an effective date. The public hearing was called to order, and several people had 
signed up but did not come up to speak on this matter. There was no comment on this item’s public hearing.   
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
14. Kimberly Burgess – Public Hearing Only of Ordinance #O-2025-14 to provide for the levy of tax for public 
purposes in Jasper County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2025 and ending June 30th 2026 and to make 
appropriations for said purposes; to adopt and approve the Jasper County capital and operations budget for 
fiscal year 2025-2026, to adopt and approve the Jasper County School District capital and operations budget 
for fiscal year 2025–2026; to provide for the levy of taxation for fiscal year 2025–2026;  to limit the 
disbursements by the county treasurer to those appropriated by law; to provide that expenditures not 
exceed appropriations; to authorize tax anticipation notes; to make authorization of certain transfers; to 
provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to codify Jasper County rates and fees; to provide for 
lapsing funds and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to require certain agencies and 
departments to file accountings; to require the treasurer to sign general fund checks; to provide special 
rules for travel and training disbursements; to provide for travel reimbursements; to provide compliance 
with act no. 317 of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to provide for county commission 
and committee stipends; to provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to provide for effective 
date of this ordinance, and matters related thereto.  (1st reading 05.19.2025) 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to address and review this matter with Council. She noted that the documents that 
were included had changed due to the budget workshop since the budget is a fluctuating item. She noted that 
at the next meeting the numbers would reflect changes. This item was public hearing only, and the public 
hearing was called to order. There were no comments, and no one spoke on this matter. 
 
15. Kimberly Burgess – Public Hearing and consideration 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-15 to Provide for 
the Issuance and Sale Of Not Exceeding Six Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($6,200,000) Aggregate 
Principal Amount of General Obligation Bonds of Jasper County, South Carolina In One or More Series, To 
Prescribe the Purposes for which the Proceeds Shall Be Expended, To Provide for the Payment Thereof, And 
to Provide tor Other Matters Related Thereto (Pope Flynn Group) (1st reading 05.19.2025)  
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-15 to 
provide for the issuance and sale of not exceeding six million two hundred thousand dollars ($6,200,000) 
aggregate principal amount of general obligation bonds of Jasper County, South Carolina in one or more 
series, to prescribe the purposes for which the proceeds shall be expended, to provide for the payment 
thereof. She noted that Mr. Flynn was present if there were any questions for him. She noted the changes 
from the first reading to the second reading and presented it to Council up on the screen. This can be seen on 
the video by going to https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA. The public hearing 
was opened but there were no comments. Councilman VanGeison noted that there would also be a public 
hearing at the next reading on June 16th. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


Minutes - 06.02.2025  

Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
16. Chief Wells – Renewal of the Annual Emergency Services Motorola Security Service and Maintenance 
Agreement. This is a budgeted item in the FY24-25 budget. The line-item number is # 010-048-2400 
Maintenance Contracts. (This annual maintenance agreement exceeds the amount that the Administrator has 
the authority to sign.) 
 
Chief Wells was present to review and discuss the consideration of the renewal of the Annual Emergency 
Services Motorola Security Service and Maintenance Agreement. He mentioned that this SSA/MA is for the 
security software patches, software upgrades, monitoring and interface via the wired line and the wireless 
public safety radio communications console in the 911 Communications Center. He noted that this was a 
budgeted item in the FY24-25 budget for line-item number is # 010-048-2400 Maintenance Contracts. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 

 
17. Danny Lucas – Public Hearing and consideration 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-16 to authorize 
Jasper County to enter into a facilities use letter of agreement with the Lowcountry Composite Group of the 
Civil Air Patrol for the periodic use of a portion of the Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport. (1st reading 
05.19.2025) 
 
Ms. Lucas was present to review and discuss consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-16 to 
authorize Jasper County to enter into a facilities use letter of agreement with the Lowcountry Composite 
Group of the Civil Air Patrol for the periodic use of a portion of the Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport. The public 
hearing was opened, but there were no comments, so the public hearing was closed. Mr. Lucas noted that 
there would be another public hearing on July 21, 2025, with the 3rd reading. He noted that the current 
agreement expired on 07.31.2025 and the new agreement terms were 08.01.2025 through 07.31.2030. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
18. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of Approval of the Cornerstone Service Agreement Terms and 
Conditions for the Jasper County Detention Center Effective July 1, 2025. (Annual Communications Contract) 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the approval of the Cornerstone Service 
Agreement terms and conditions for the Jasper County Detention Center Effective July 1, 2025. Ms. Burgess 
noted that as per Section 2-204 (Contracting/purchasing authority) of the Jasper County Purchasing and 
Contracting Ordinance Chapter 2, Article V of the Jasper County Code of Ordinances provides that only the 
County Council has the authority to enter into contract in excess of $25,000 and all contracts for special 
services. Cornerstone Products, Inc. provides maintenance and support for the detention center swing doors, 
slider doors, detention locks, compressor system and miscellaneous items such as the food pass hardware.  
 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

The annual contract she noted for Cornerstone Detention Products, Inc., exceeded $25,000, provided for a 
three (3) year annual renewal, and was included in the 2026 fiscal year budget. The annual renewal costs were 
noted as follows: FY26 $45,865.83, FY27 $48,159.13, and FY28 $50,567.08. She commented that staff 
requested that the Council approve and authorize the County Administrator to renew and execute the 
Cornerstone Detention Center Products, Inc., contract for a three (3) year term with a cost for fiscal year 2026 
of $45,865.83. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 
19. David Tedder –  Consideration of the  2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-10 an Ordinance authorizing the 
sale to 719 Holdings, LLC of a 2.158 acre parcel, more or less, being subdivided out of the original 19.09 acre 
Parcel identified as Parcel B as shown on a Plat recorded at Plat Book 27 at Page 80, being a portion of tax 
parcel 048-00-01-005,  and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute such contracts, 
amendments, deeds and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the sale to 719 
Holdings, LLC, or its assigns, and matters related thereto. (Public Hearing Only 04.07.2025; 1st reading 
05.19.2025) 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-10 an 
ordinance authorizing the sale to 719 Holdings, LLC of a 2.158 acre parcel, more or less, being subdivided out 
of the original 19.09 acre parcel identified as Parcel B as shown on a plat recorded at plat book 27 at page 80, 
being a portion of tax parcel 048-00-01-005,  and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute 
such contracts, amendments, deeds and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the 
sale to 719 Holdings, LLC, or its assigns. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 

20. Administrator’s Report: Mr. Fulghum reviewed the information from his report. There was one Action 
Item requiring a vote from the Council in the Administrator’s Report as shown below: 
 
Authorization for Chairman to execute Project Salmon Grant Performance Agreement: 
 
Motion to authorize the Chairman of County Council to execute the Performance Agreement between 
Jasper County, the South Carolina Coordinating Council for Economic Development, and TS Conductor as 
attached hereto regarding the economic development project formerly known as “Project Salmon,” noting 
that the County Council has previously authorized the acceptance of the Economic Development Closing 
Fund Grant for Project Salmon:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.   

21. Approval of the Minutes 03.24.2025 

Motion to approve:  Councilman Arzillo 



Minutes - 06.02.2025  

Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed 
 

22. Councilmember Comments and Discussion: Councilmember Comments were given but there were no 
comments that required action.  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
23. Adjournment: 
 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all of our County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  

 
Respectfully submitted:      

    
  _______________________________________ 
  Wanda H. Giles 
  Clerk to Council                                                                ____________________________________   
           John A. Kemp 
                                                                                                         Chairman                                                           

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


Minutes – 06.04.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

Wednesday, June 4, 2025 
Minutes 

Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell, Councilman Chris VanGeison and 
Councilman Joe Arzillo  
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney David 
Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Danny Lucas, Chief Russell Wells, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 3PM by Chairman Kemp. The Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the 
Freedom of Information Act was read as follows for the record. In accordance with South Carolina Code of 
Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted 
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the 
county website, and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or 
organizations requesting notification.  

 
2.     Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or release 
of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or the appointment of a person to a 
public body – (1) personnel matter involving an employee complaint; 2) Elected Officials salaries 

  
(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     
      purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
      pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
      privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
      situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim – (1) Legal Tax Sale / Overage Litigation       
      Case # 2025CP2700011; (2) Case # 2025CP2700071; (3) Airport Litigation Case # 2025CV2710300320 

 
 
Motion to go into Executive Session: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

 
Return to Open Session  
 
Motion to return to Regular Session: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 



Minutes – 06.04.2025  
 

 
o 2.1 Action coming out of Executive Session 

 
Motion to authorize the administrator and our outside Counsel to proceed with the handling of employee 
complaints as recommended by Council: Councilman Arzillo 
Second: Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
3. Pledge to the Flag and Invocation  
 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman Rowell. 

 
4. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion to approve: Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
5. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of the 2nd reading of Ordinance #O-2025-14 to provide for the levy of 
tax for public purposes in Jasper County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2025 and ending June 30th 2026 
and to make appropriations for said purposes; to adopt and approve the Jasper County capital and 
operations budget for fiscal year 2025-2026, to adopt and approve the Jasper County School District capital 
and operations budget for fiscal year 2025–2026; to provide for the levy of taxation for fiscal year 2025–
2026;  to limit the disbursements by the county treasurer to those appropriated by law; to provide that 
expenditures not exceed appropriations; to authorize tax anticipation notes; to make authorization of 
certain transfers; to provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to codify Jasper County rates and 
fees; to provide for lapsing funds and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to require certain 
agencies and departments to file accountings; to require the treasurer to sign general fund checks; to 
provide special rules for travel and training disbursements; to provide for travel reimbursements; to provide 
compliance with act no. 317 of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to provide for county 
commission and committee stipends; to provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to provide 
for effective date of this ordinance, and matters related thereto.  (1st reading 05.19.2025; Public Hearing 
06.02.2025)   
 
Kimberly Burgess was present to review and discuss this matter of the second reading of Ordinance #O-2025-
14 to provide for the levy of tax for public purposes in Jasper County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2025 
and ending June 30th 2026 and to make appropriations for said purposes; to adopt and approve the Jasper 
County capital and operations budget for fiscal year 2025-2026, to adopt and approve the Jasper County 
School District capital and operations budget for fiscal year 2025–2026; to provide for the levy of taxation for 
fiscal year 2025–2026;  to limit the disbursements by the county treasurer to those appropriated by law; to 
provide that expenditures not exceed appropriations; to authorize tax anticipation notes; to make 
authorization of certain transfers; to provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to codify Jasper 
County rates and fees; to provide for lapsing funds and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to 
require certain agencies and departments to file accountings; to require the treasurer to sign general fund 
checks; to provide special rules for travel and training disbursements; to provide for travel reimbursements; to 



Minutes – 06.04.2025  
 

provide compliance with Act Number 317 of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to provide 
for county commission and committee stipends; to provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to 
provide for effective date of this ordinance. Ms. Burgess reviewed this information and after some discussion, 
Council decided to defer this item.  
 
Motion to defer to June 16th: Councilman Rowell 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
Adjourn: 
Motion to adjourn: Councilman VanGeison  
Second: Councilman Rowell  
Vote: Unanimous  
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned. 
 
For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all of our County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
___________________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council 
 
                                                                                                     _______________________________________ 
                 John H. Kemp 
               Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


Minutes – 06.09.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

Monday, June 9, 2025 
Minutes 

 
 

Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell and Councilman Joe Arzillo 
Absent: Councilman Chris VanGeison  
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, County Attorney David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, 
Danny Lucas, Chief Russell Wells, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
The workshop was called to order at 10AM by Chairman Kemp. The Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the 
Freedom of Information Act was read as follows for the record. In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 
1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 
24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, 
and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting 
notification. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman Rowell. 
 
3. Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve: Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
Claude Hicks, Beaufort Jasper Housing Authority:  Affordable Housing – Mr. Hicks prepared a presentation (this 
item is attached as Attachment “A” )for Council on this item for this agenda. He was present to discuss the overall 
purpose, statutory authority, operations, funding, results of the Beaufort – Jasper Housing Authority. Mr. Hicks 
discussed who the Beaufort – Jasper Housing Trust was and noted that their mission was to create and preserve 
workforce. He also mentioned that they are a 501(c)(3) organization. The Board of Directors consists of 9 
members appointed by contributing jurisdictions, SoLoCo and 8 members from housing-related professions. He 
discussed why housing matters to the areas related to Economic Growth, Quality of Life and Regional 
Collaboration. Housing affordability (as based on the 2025 HUD Income Limits and the American Community 
Survey was reviewed. The presentation showed that data including both Beaufort and Jasper Counties had not 
had a single period of affordability in over 21 years. The discussion of the fact that development of workforce and 
affordable housing must be intentional. The presentation also covered the Beaufort – Jasper Housing Trust 
Program platforms including the creation of workforce and affordable housing; preservation of existing 



Minutes – 06.09.2025  
 

workforce/affordable housing stock through home repair; and the creation of new homeowners through 
homeowner assistance programs. He also provided a listing of the grantees that they have worked with to provide 
housing , home repairs and to provide assistance to first time home buyers. The progress to date was discussed 
along with what was up next for the Beaufort – Jasper Housing Trust. The state and local policy initiatives were 
reviewed with Council. The Save the Date for a “Blueprint for Change: A solutions forum on workforce and 
affordable housing featuring Dr. Laura Ullrich on September 24, 2025, from 9AM to 12pm by invitation only was 
extended to Council. This invitation was convening public and private leaders to develop actionable strategies and 
forge partnerships to accelerate housing solutions.     
 
Discussion of the Ridgeland – Claude Dean Runway Length Justification Study  
 
Mr. Fulghum about what the Council wished to do with the study. He reminded them that the former council 
through a runway length analysis to determine the ultimate length for the solar primary runway. He mentioned 
that staff had worked back in 2023 with Holt Consulting Company to identify a scope of services to conduct a 
runway length justification study at a cost of $240,806.00.  Staff then worked with the Department of Commerce, 
and they offered a $160,000,00 grant to assist with the project. He also mentioned that they had gotten some 
private funding from Congaree Golf Partners in the amount of $80,000.00 and noted that the amount due from 
the County was only $806.00. Mr. Fulghum said the state would like to see this submitted to the FAA. He noted 
that the funders are looking for an answer from Council regarding what action they will be taking. He noted that 
they would be talking with the Airport Commission on Wednesday night to get a recommendation from them 
also. He mentioned that there was no financial obligation to send it to the FAA. Chairman Kemp stated that he 
had put this on the agenda because Council had postponed it and wanted the Airport Commission to give them 
guidance on what to do. Mr. Dean, Vice Chairman mentioned that they had seen the presentation. He noted that 
the Airport Commission wanted to know how much the County would be on the hook for should the FAA and 
State fund their shares. He said any information passed on to them would help with their decision.  Mr. Fulghum 
noted that the process of having the FAA review this study and noted that the proposed runway length was going 
from 4200 to 5400 feet. He said that then the FAA would review and say if it was justified or not, and if so then 
they would let them know if they would be interested in partnering to fund it. Council discussed this item and  
how the procedures with the FAA would go. They also asked what the portion to the County would be if the FAA 
approved of this request. Ms. Burgess said in the past the County’s portion after the FAA was about 5%. Chairman 
Kemp mentioned that at the last participation for the Airport being at 5% how much was that dollar amount of 
participation. Staff noted that the amount of County participation was 1.5 million. Council also asked for a hard 
copy of the presentation and a copy of the Executive Summary. Mr. Fulghum said they would get this for Council.  
 
FY 2025-2026 Budget 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to address this request. Vice Chairman Rowell asked about the budget workshop on 
June 11th. He said he had some ideas for the future to streamlined things. The Council discussed some areas with 
staff. Ms. Burgess clarified some of the specific changes that were made. Mr. Fulghum noted that they would 
eventually have a list of changes that would have to be adopted by motion. Chairman Kemp reviewed his 
questions that he had sent over on the budget and staff provided answers. Chairman Kemp discussed the need 
for forecasting as it pertained to the budget. They discussed a working fund, and Councilman Arzillo mentioned 
pulling everything into one fund. This would give them a better idea of what they had financially they explained. 
The Cash Carry Forward was also discussed as was the Fund Balance. Ms. Burgess gave a short review of how the 
intricacies of the budget process worked when it pertained to the budget preparation. They discussed revenues, 
expenditures, savings, emergency occurrences, and the separation of line items on the budget. They also 
discussed budget requests that they had received and how that would proceed moving forward. They also 



Minutes – 06.09.2025  
 

discussed the organization of the budget so that when it got to the readings and what would need to be done by 
June 30th. They also discussed the School Board and how that affected the County budget. Mr. Fulghum noted 
that they had received the MOU from the Treasurer and that all parties had signed.  
 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all of our County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  
 
 
_____________________________________  
Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council 
 
 
        __________________________________________  
        John A. Kemp, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


Attachment "A"































Minutes – 06.11.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

Wednesday, June 11, 2025 
Minutes 

 
Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell, Councilman Chris VanGeison and 
Councilman Joe Arzillo 
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney David 
Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Danny Lucas, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
The workshop was called to order at 10AM by Chairman Kemp. The Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the 
Freedom of Information Act was read as follows for the record. In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 
1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 
24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, 
and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting 
notification. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman Rowell. 
 
3. Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Arzillo 
Second:  Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
Jasper County School District Budget 
 
Ms. Burgess noted that she had met Dr. Wack, and he said that their 3rd reading was taken off their agenda and it 
would not be until 06.23.2025. They said they could not take this meeting with Council until after June 23rd.  
Chairman Kemp noted that he wished they had still came to talk with Council since they had set aside this time for 
them. Mr. Tedder stated that they had put in a base budget for them for the millage at the current levels. He said 
that they do have the opportunity to amend the budget after June 30th and explained how that worked. He noted 
that the law was clear that Council sets the millage and the school board just has to work with what they are 
provided. 
 
FY 2025-2026 Budget 
 
Vice Chairman Rowell discussed the Discretionary Fund and its use. He also mentioned that they had discussed 
and needed a Deputy County Administrator for more of the day-to-day operations. He later noted that this would 



Minutes – 06.11.2025  
 

probably be a 3rd quarter hire. He also noted that they wanted to look into the arrangements with the vehicles.  
Councilman VanGeison noted that he wanted the departments to look at their budgets to see what they could 
reduce in it to show a more accurate reflection of what they really needed. He noted that Council did not want to 
the cut the wrong or necessary things that they may need. He also noted that he would like to add $350,000.00 to 
the budget for a Forensic Audit. He noted that maybe down the road they could put money aside yearly and have 
a Forensic Audit every 10 years. Ms. Burgess discussed the Annual Financial Audit and a Forensic Audit and 
explained the differences in the two types of audits. Councilman VanGeison asked about the grant funds. She 
noted that the Annual Audit did include grants. Councilman Arzillo noted that he believed that there were places 
to cut money so it could be placed in an Emergency Fund. Mr. Fulghum noted that they would go through and 
find a couple of options for the $350,000.00. Chairman Kemp noted that they wanted an independent person to 
do the Audit, like a wellness check of the audit. The Fire Department’s budget was discussed, as was the lapsing 
funds. Council said they wanted to be able to see where the money goes to or moves to. Ms. Burges discussed the 
reprioritizing of funds and how the budget amendments worked. Council reviewed other items in the budget with 
staff, and how some things were arranged, and staff clarified those things. Mr. Fulghum noted that the School 
Board could be present between the 23rd and the 30th at Council’s preference on the date.  
 
Adjournment: 
 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison  
Vote: Unanimous 
 
For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all of our County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  
 
 
 
__________________________________________  
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council      
 
        _____________________________________________ 
        John A. Kemp 
        Chairman     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


Minutes – 06.12.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

Thursday, June 12, 2025 
Minutes 

 
Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell, Councilman Chris VanGeison and 
Councilman Joe Arzillo  
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney David 
Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, James Iwanicki, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham. 
Others Present: Keith Hughes   
 
The meeting was called to order at 10:00AM by Chairman Kemp. The Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the 
Freedom of Information Act was read as follows for the record. In accordance with South Carolina Code of 
Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted 
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the 
county website, and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or 
organizations requesting notification.  

 
2.     Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     
      purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
      pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
      privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
      situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim – JARM Lease / Agreement  
 

Motion to go into Executive Session: Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

 
Return to Open Session  
 
Motion to return to Regular Session: Councilman VanGeison  
Second: Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 

o 2.1 Action coming out of Executive Session – No action was taken 
 



Minutes – 06.12.2025  
 

The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman VanGeison. 
 
o Adjourn  

 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second:  Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 

For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all of our County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
___________________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council 
 
                                                                                                     _______________________________________ 
                 John H. Kemp 
               Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA






 
PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, Jasper County Fire Rescue is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all 
those living in Jasper County, South Carolina and all those visiting ; and 
 
WHEREAS, fire remains a serious public safety concern both locally and nationally, and the 
presence of lithium-ion batteries in many household devices introduces unique fire risks; and 
 
WHEREAS, most of the electronics used in homes daily — including smartphones, tablets, 
laptops, power tools, e-bikes, e-scooters, and toys — are powered by lithium-ion batteries, which 
if misused, damaged, or improperly charged, can overheat, start a fire, or explode; and 
 
WHEREAS, the National Fire Protection Association® (NFPA®) reports an increase in battery-
related fires, underscoring the need for public education on the safe use of lithium-ion batteries; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, residents should follow three key calls to action: Buy only listed products, charge 
batteries safely, and recycle them responsibly to prevent battery-related fires; and 
 
WHEREAS, lithium-ion batteries store a large amount of energy in a small space, and 
improper use such as overcharging, using off-brand chargers without safety certification, or 
exposing batteries to damage can result in fire or explosion; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proper disposal and recycling of lithium-ion batteries help prevent 
environmental hazards and reduce fire risks in the home and community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jasper County Fire Rescue first responders are dedicated to reducing the 
occurrence of fires through prevention, safety education, and community outreach; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025 Fire Prevention Week™ theme, “Charge into Fire Safety™: Lithium-
Ion Batteries in Your Home,” serves to remind us of the importance of using, charging, and 
recycling lithium-ion batteries safely to reduce the risk of fires in homes and communities. 
 
THEREFORE, Jasper County Council, does hereby proclaim October 5–11, 2025, as Fire 
Prevention Week throughout Jasper County, South Carolina.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED, that Jasper County Council 
does hereby proclaim October 5–11, 2025, as Fire Prevention Week throughout Jasper County, 
South Carolina. Let it be known, on this 6th day of October, 2025   that this proclamation has been 
adopted by the Jasper County Council duly assembled. 

 

____________________________________  

(Seal)        John A. Kemp, Chairman 









1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
JASPER COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2025-53 

RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL TO 
APPROVE THE PROCUREMENT OF BODY WORN 

CAMERAS AND TASERS FOR THE JASPER COUNTY 
DETENTION CENTER THROUGH A PURCHASING 

COOPERATIVE WITH OMNIA PARTNERS 

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Detention Center Director, the Jasper Count 
Human Resources Director, the Jasper County Director of Administrative 
Services, and the Jasper County Administrator agree that it is necessary to provide 
safety equipment for the guards employed at the Detention Center similar to and 
compatible with the safety equipment provided to the employees of the Jasper 
County Sheriff Department; and 

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the Jasper County Detention Center Department 
and the Jasper County Administration that the interests of Jasper County and its 
employees would best be served by implementing the proposal provided by Axon 
Enterprise, Inc., with a total cost of approximately $386,282.29 (including sales 
tax) for 35 camera and taser bundles payable by annual payments over a period of 
five years; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2.441, Article V Purchasing and Contracting Ordinance of 
Jasper County Code of Ordinances authorizes the chief purchasing officer to 
participate in, sponsor, conduct, or administer a cooperative purchasing 
agreement for procurement of supplies, services or construction with one or more 
public procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into between 
the participants; and  

WHEREAS, Section 2-443 states that the chief purchasing officer may enter 
into an agreement, independent of the requirement of the bid process and sale 
process of this article, with any public procurement unit for the cooperative use 
of supplies or services under the terms agreed upon between the parties, and  

WHEREAS, Jasper County is a member of the Omnia Partners purchasing 
cooperative and Axon Enterprise, Inc. participates as a vendor in the Omnia 
Partners purchasing cooperative under contract 3544-21-46158; and  



2

WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds in the current Detention Center fiscal 
year 2026 budget in the EQUIPMENT line item (010-058-2430) for the first 
annual payment of $120,570.36 due December 2025; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Jasper County Council, in the 
council duly assembled and by the authority of the same that Jasper County 
Council hereby is of the belief and finds that it is in the best interest of the County, 
its citizens, and its employees to approve the requested purchase of body worn 
cameras and tasers from Axon Enterprise, Inc. under the Omnia Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, the County Administrator is authorized to execute 
purchase documents as are customary and usual, up to a maximum amount of
$387,000, on behalf of the County. 

SIGNATURES FOLLOW

This Resolution No. 2025-53 made this 6th day of October, 2025. 
 
 
 
       _____________________

  John A. Kemp  
Chairman

  

ATTEST:

____________________
Wanda H. Giles  
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.  
 

       
___________________________  ___________ 
County Attorney    Date 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Resolution #2025-53 

 

RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE 
PROCUREMENT OF BODY WORN CAMERAS AND TASERS FOR THE 
JASPER COUNTY DETENTION CENTER THROUGH A PURCHASING 

COOPERATIVE WITH OMNIA PARTNERS 



Q
-6

59
27

1-
45

91
7Z

A

Is
su

ed
:0

9/
17

/2
02

5

Q
uo

te
Ex

pi
ra

tio
n:

10
/3

1/
20

25

Es
tim

at
ed

C
on

tra
ct

St
ar

tD
at

e:
01

/0
1/

20
26

Ac
co

un
tN

um
be

r:
31

54
23

Pa
ym

en
tT

er
m

s:
N

30

M
od

e
of

D
el

iv
er

y:
U

PS
-G

N
D

C
re

di
t/D

eb
it

Am
ou

nt
:$

0.
00

Ja
sp

er
C

ou
nt

y
D

et
en

tio
n

C
en

te
r-

SC
12

00
8

N
Ja

co
b

Sm
ar

tB
lv

d
R

id
ge

la
nd

,
SC 29

93
6-

87
97

U
SA

Ja
sp

er
C

ou
nt

y
D

et
en

tio
n

C
en

te
r-

SC

12
00

8
N

Ja
co

b
Sm

ar
tB

lv
d

R
id

ge
la

nd
SC 29

93
6-

87
97

U
SA

Em
ai

l:

Za
ch

Au
st

in
Ph

on
e:

Em
ai

l:
za

us
tin

@
ax

on
.c

om Fa
x:

D
on

al
d

H
ip

p
Ph

on
e:

(5
43

)7
26

-7
77

9
Em

ai
l:

dh
ip

p@
ja

sp
er

co
un

ty
sc

.g
ov

Fa
x:



Pa
ge

 2
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

Pa
ym

en
t S

um
m

ar
y 

D
at

e
Su

bt
ot

al
Ta

x
To

ta
l

D
ec

 2
02

5
$1

11
,7

24
.6

8
$8

,8
45

.6
8

$1
20

,5
70

.3
6

D
ec

 2
02

6
$6

1,
00

4.
18

$5
,4

23
.8

2
$6

6,
42

8.
00

D
ec

 2
02

7
$6

1,
00

4.
18

$5
,4

23
.8

2
$6

6,
42

8.
00

D
ec

 2
02

8
$6

1,
00

4.
18

$5
,4

23
.8

2
$6

6,
42

8.
00

D
ec

 2
02

9
$6

1,
00

4.
18

$5
,4

23
.7

5
$6

6,
42

7.
93

To
ta

l
$3

55
,7

41
.4

0
$3

0,
54

0.
89

$3
86

,2
82

.2
9



Pa
ge

 3
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

Q
uo

te
 U

nb
un

dl
ed

 P
ric

e:
$4

20
,4

11
.8

0
Q

uo
te

 L
is

t P
ric

e:
$3

55
,7

87
.6

0
Q

uo
te

 S
ub

to
ta

l:
$3

55
,7

41
.4

0

Pr
ic

in
g

A
ll 

de
liv

er
ab

le
s 

ar
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Sc
he

du
le

s 
se

ct
io

n 
lo

w
er

 in
 p

ro
po

sa
l

Ite
m

 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

ty
Te

rm
U

nb
un

dl
ed

  
Li

st
 P

ric
e

N
et

 P
ric

e
Su

bt
ot

al
Ta

x
To

ta
l

Pr
og

ra
m

BW
C

am
M

BD
TA

P
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

M
ul

ti-
Ba

y 
D

oc
k 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
4

60
$7

3.
05

$6
2.

52
$6

2.
52

$1
5,

00
4.

80
$1

,3
50

.4
3

$1
6,

35
5.

23
BW

C
am

TA
P

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

35
60

$4
3.

41
$3

3.
80

$3
3.

80
$7

0,
98

0.
00

$6
,3

88
.1

9
$7

7,
36

8.
19

C
00

02
4

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

35
60

$1
06

.6
2

$8
6.

66
$8

6.
66

$1
81

,9
86

.0
0

$1
6,

04
5.

91
$1

98
,0

31
.9

1

A
 la

 C
ar

te
 H

ar
dw

ar
e

H
00

00
1

AB
4 

C
am

er
a 

Bu
nd

le
35

$8
99

.0
0

$8
99

.0
0

$3
1,

46
5.

00
$2

,8
31

.8
5

$3
4,

29
6.

85
H

00
00

2
AB

4 
M

ul
ti 

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
Bu

nd
le

4
$1

,6
38

.9
0

$1
,6

38
.9

0
$6

,5
55

.6
0

$5
90

.0
1

$7
,1

45
.6

1

A
 la

 C
ar

te
 S

of
tw

ar
e 

Pr
oL

ic
en

se
Pr

o 
Li

ce
ns

e 
Bu

nd
le

1
60

$4
8.

82
$4

8.
75

$2
,9

25
.0

0
$2

63
.2

5
$3

,1
88

.2
5

Ba
si

cL
ic

en
se

Ba
si

c 
Li

ce
ns

e 
Bu

nd
le

35
60

$1
6.

27
$1

6.
25

$3
4,

12
5.

00
$3

,0
71

.2
5

$3
7,

19
6.

25

A
 la

 C
ar

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

10
12

08
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- 2

 D
AY

 IN
ST

R
U

C
TO

R
 C

O
U

R
SE

 - 
IN

SI
D

E 
SA

LE
S

1
$2

,7
00

.0
0

$2
,7

00
.0

0
$2

,7
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$2

,7
00

.0
0

85
14

4
AX

O
N

 B
O

D
Y 

- P
SO

 - 
ST

AR
TE

R
1

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$0

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
To

ta
l

$3
55

,7
41

.4
0

$3
0,

54
0.

89
$3

86
,2

82
.2

9

D
el

iv
er

y 
Sc

he
du

le

H
ar

dw
ar

e 
B

un
dl

e
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

TY
Sh

ip
pi

ng
 L

oc
at

io
n

Es
tim

at
ed

 D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
e

AB
4 

C
am

er
a 

Bu
nd

le
10

01
47

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
4 

- C
AM

ER
A 

- N
A 

U
S 

FI
R

ST
 R

ES
PO

N
D

ER
 B

LK
 

R
AP

ID
LO

C
K

35
1

12
/0

1/
20

25

AB
4 

C
am

er
a 

Bu
nd

le
10

01
47

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
4 

- C
AM

ER
A 

- N
A 

U
S 

FI
R

ST
 R

ES
PO

N
D

ER
 B

LK
 

R
AP

ID
LO

C
K

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25

AB
4 

C
am

er
a 

Bu
nd

le
10

01
82

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
- M

O
U

N
T 

- R
AP

ID
LO

C
K 

H
IG

H
 R

ET
EN

TI
O

N
 W

IN
G

 
C

LI
P

39
1

12
/0

1/
20

25

AB
4 

C
am

er
a 

Bu
nd

le
10

04
66

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
4 

- C
AB

LE
 - 

U
SB

-C
 T

O
 U

SB
-C

39
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
AB

4 
C

am
er

a 
Bu

nd
le

10
07

75
AX

O
N

 B
O

D
Y 

4 
- M

AG
N

ET
IC

 D
IS

C
O

N
N

EC
T 

C
AB

LE
39

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

AB
4

M
ul

ti
Ba

y
D

oc
k

Bu
nd

le
10

02
06

AX
O

N
BO

D
Y

4
-8

BA
Y

D
O

C
K

4
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
AB

4 
M

ul
ti 

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
Bu

nd
le

70
03

3
AX

O
N

 - 
D

O
C

K 
W

AL
L 

M
O

U
N

T 
- B

R
AC

KE
T 

AS
SY

4
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
AB

4 
M

ul
ti 

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
Bu

nd
le

71
01

9
AX

O
N

 B
O

D
Y 

- D
O

C
K 

PO
W

ER
C

O
R

D
 - 

N
O

R
TH

 A
M

ER
IC

A
4

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

-T
AS

ER
10

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

ST
AN

D
AR

D
10

01
26

AX
O

N
VR

-T
AC

TI
C

AL
BA

G
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
03

90
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- H

AN
D

LE
 - 

YE
LL

O
W

 C
LA

SS
 3

R
35

2
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
03

90
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- H

AN
D

LE
 - 

YE
LL

O
W

 C
LA

SS
 3

R
1

2
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

-T
AS

ER
10

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

ST
AN

D
AR

D
10

03
94

AX
O

N
TA

SE
R

10
-M

AG
AZ

IN
E

-H
AL

T
TR

AI
N

IN
G

BL
U

E
4

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
03

96
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- M

AG
AZ

IN
E 

- I
N

ER
T 

R
ED

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

03
99

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- C
AR

TR
ID

G
E 

- L
IV

E
53

0
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
BU

N
D

LE
-T

AS
ER

10
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
ST

AN
D

AR
D

10
04

00
AX

O
N

TA
SE

R
10

-C
AR

TR
ID

G
E

-H
AL

T
25

0
1

12
/0

1/
20

25



Pa
ge

 4
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

H
ar

dw
ar

e 
B

un
dl

e
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

TY
Sh

ip
pi

ng
 L

oc
at

io
n

Es
tim

at
ed

 D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
e

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
04

01
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- C

AR
TR

ID
G

E 
- I

N
ER

T
20

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
05

91
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 - 

C
LE

AN
IN

G
 K

IT
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
06

11
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- S

AF
AR

IL
AN

D
 H

O
LS

TE
R

 - 
R

H
35

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
06

23
EN

H
AN

C
ED

 H
O

O
K-

AN
D

-L
O

O
P 

TR
AI

N
IN

G
 (H

AL
T)

 S
U

IT
 (V

2)
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
07

48
AX

O
N

 V
R

 - 
C

O
N

TR
O

LL
ER

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

11
22

AX
O

N
 V

R
 - 

H
O

LS
TE

R
 - 

T1
0 

SA
FA

R
IL

AN
D

 G
R

AY
 - 

R
H

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
14

55
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

TO
O

L 
KI

T 
- I

N
TE

R
PO

SE
R

  
BU

C
KE

T
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
14

56
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

IN
TE

R
PO

SE
R

  B
U

C
KE

T
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
17

55
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- M

AG
AZ

IN
E 

- L
IV

E 
D

U
TY

 B
LA

C
K 

V2
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
17

55
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- M

AG
AZ

IN
E 

- L
IV

E 
D

U
TY

 B
LA

C
K 

V2
35

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
17

57
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- M

AG
AZ

IN
E 

- L
IV

E 
TR

AI
N

IN
G

 P
U

R
PL

E 
V2

3
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
20

01
8

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 - 
BA

TT
ER

Y 
PA

C
K 

- T
AC

TI
C

AL
35

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

20
01

8
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 - 

BA
TT

ER
Y 

PA
C

K 
- T

AC
TI

C
AL

7
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
20

01
8

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 - 
BA

TT
ER

Y 
PA

C
K 

- T
AC

TI
C

AL
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

70
03

3
AX

O
N

 - 
D

O
C

K 
W

AL
L 

M
O

U
N

T 
- B

R
AC

KE
T 

AS
SY

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
71

01
9

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
- D

O
C

K 
PO

W
ER

C
O

R
D

 - 
N

O
R

TH
 A

M
ER

IC
A

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
74

20
0

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 - 
D

O
C

K 
- S

IX
 B

AY
 P

LU
S 

C
O

R
E

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

80
08

7
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 - 

TA
R

G
ET

 - 
C

O
N

D
U

C
TI

VE
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 

R
U

G
G

ED
IZ

ED
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

80
09

0
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 - 

TA
R

G
ET

 F
R

AM
E 

- P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 2
7.

5 
IN

 X
 7

5 
IN

1
1

12
/0

1/
20

25

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
04

00
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- C

AR
TR

ID
G

E 
- H

AL
T

18
0

1
12

/0
1/

20
26

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
04

00
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 1

0 
- C

AR
TR

ID
G

E 
- H

AL
T

17
0

1
12

/0
1/

20
27

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
10

12
AX

O
N

 V
R

 - 
TA

P 
R

EF
R

ES
H

 1
 - 

C
O

N
TR

O
LL

ER
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
27

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

20
37

3
AX

O
N

 V
R

 - 
TA

P 
R

EF
R

ES
H

 1
 - 

H
EA

D
SE

T
1

1
12

/0
1/

20
27

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

73
68

9
AX

O
N

 B
O

D
Y 

- T
AP

 R
EF

R
ES

H
 1

 - 
D

O
C

K 
M

U
LT

I B
AY

4
1

06
/0

1/
20

28
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
73

30
9

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
- T

AP
 R

EF
R

ES
H

 1
 - 

C
AM

ER
A

36
1

06
/0

1/
20

28
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

04
00

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- C
AR

TR
ID

G
E 

- H
AL

T
18

0
1

12
/0

1/
20

28
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

04
00

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- C
AR

TR
ID

G
E 

- H
AL

T
17

0
1

12
/0

1/
20

29
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

M
ul

ti-
Ba

y 
D

oc
k 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
73

68
8

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
- T

AP
 R

EF
R

ES
H

 2
 - 

D
O

C
K 

M
U

LT
I B

AY
4

1
12

/0
1/

20
30

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

73
31

0
AX

O
N

 B
O

D
Y 

- T
AP

 R
EF

R
ES

H
 2

 - 
C

AM
ER

A
36

1
12

/0
1/

20
30

So
ftw

ar
e 

B
un

dl
e

Ite
m

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Q
TY

Es
tim

at
ed

 S
ta

rt
 D

at
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e
Ba

si
c 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
73

68
3

AX
O

N
 E

VI
D

EN
C

E 
- S

TO
R

AG
E 

- 1
0G

B 
A 

LA
 C

AR
TE

35
01

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
Ba

si
c 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
73

84
0

AX
O

N
 E

VI
D

EN
C

E 
- E

C
O

M
 L

IC
EN

SE
 - 

BA
SI

C
35

01
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

BU
N

D
LE

-T
AS

ER
10

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

ST
AN

D
AR

D
10

11
80

AX
O

N
TA

SE
R

-D
AT

A
SC

IE
N

C
E

PR
O

G
R

AM
35

01
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

10
17

03
AX

O
N

 V
R

 - 
U

SE
R

 A
C

C
ES

S 
- T

AS
ER

 S
KI

LL
S

35
01

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
20

24
8

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 - 
EV

ID
EN

C
E.

C
O

M
 L

IC
EN

SE
35

01
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

BU
N

D
LE

-T
AS

ER
10

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

ST
AN

D
AR

D
20

24
8

AX
O

N
TA

SE
R

-E
VI

D
EN

C
E.

C
O

M
LI

C
EN

SE
1

01
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

Pr
o 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
73

68
3

AX
O

N
 E

VI
D

EN
C

E 
- S

TO
R

AG
E 

- 1
0G

B 
A 

LA
 C

AR
TE

3
01

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
Pr

o 
Li

ce
ns

e 
Bu

nd
le

73
74

6
AX

O
N

 E
VI

D
EN

C
E 

- E
C

O
M

 L
IC

EN
SE

 - 
PR

O
1

01
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

Se
rv

ic
es

 
B

un
dl

e
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

TY
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

07
51

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T 
AC

C
ES

S 
PR

O
G

R
AM

 - 
D

U
TY

 C
AR

TR
ID

G
E

35
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

11
93

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 - 
O

N
 D

EM
AN

D
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
35

A 
la

 C
ar

te
10

12
08

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- 2
 D

AY
 IN

ST
R

U
C

TO
R

 C
O

U
R

SE
 - 

IN
SI

D
E 

SA
LE

S
1

A 
la

 C
ar

te
85

14
4

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
- P

SO
 - 

ST
AR

TE
R

1



Pa
ge

 5
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

W
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

B
un

dl
e

Ite
m

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Q
TY

Es
tim

at
ed

 S
ta

rt
 D

at
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

M
ul

ti-
Ba

y 
D

oc
k 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
80

46
5

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
- T

AP
 W

AR
R

AN
TY

 - 
M

U
LT

I B
AY

 D
O

C
K

4
12

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
80

46
4

AX
O

N
 B

O
D

Y 
- T

AP
 W

AR
R

AN
TY

 - 
C

AM
ER

A
35

12
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

80
46

4
AX

O
N

 B
O

D
Y 

- T
AP

 W
AR

R
AN

TY
 - 

C
AM

ER
A

1
12

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

07
04

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- E
XT

 W
AR

R
AN

TY
 - 

H
AN

D
LE

35
12

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

07
04

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- E
XT

 W
AR

R
AN

TY
 - 

H
AN

D
LE

1
12

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
10

10
07

AX
O

N
 V

R
 - 

EX
T 

W
AR

R
AN

TY
 - 

C
O

N
TR

O
LL

ER
1

12
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

80
37

4
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 - 

EX
T 

W
AR

R
AN

TY
 - 

BA
TT

ER
Y 

PA
C

K 
T7

/T
10

35
12

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
80

37
4

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 - 
EX

T 
W

AR
R

AN
TY

 - 
BA

TT
ER

Y 
PA

C
K 

T7
/T

10
1

12
/0

1/
20

26
12

/3
1/

20
30

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

80
37

4
AX

O
N

 T
AS

ER
 - 

EX
T 

W
AR

R
AN

TY
 - 

BA
TT

ER
Y 

PA
C

K 
T7

/T
10

7
12

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30
BU

N
D

LE
 - 

TA
SE

R
 1

0 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
80

39
6

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 - 
EX

T 
W

AR
R

AN
TY

 - 
D

O
C

K 
SI

X 
BA

Y 
T7

/T
10

1
12

/0
1/

20
26

12
/3

1/
20

30



Pa
ge

 6
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

Sh
ip

pi
ng

 L
oc

at
io

ns

Lo
ca

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

St
re

et
C

ity
St

at
e

Zi
p

C
ou

nt
ry

1
12

00
8 

N
 J

ac
ob

 S
m

ar
t B

lv
d

R
id

ge
la

nd
SC

29
93

6-
87

97
U

SA

2
12

00
8 

N
 J

ac
ob

 S
m

ar
t B

lv
d

R
id

ge
la

nd
SC

29
93

6-
87

97
U

SA

Pa
ym

en
t D

et
ai

ls

D
ec

 2
02

5
In

vo
ic

e 
Pl

an
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

ty
Su

bt
ot

al
Ta

x
To

ta
l

H
ar

dw
ar

e 
U

pf
ro

nt
 B

illi
ng

 +
 P

SO
10

12
08

AX
O

N
 T

AS
ER

 1
0 

- 2
 D

AY
 IN

ST
R

U
C

TO
R

 C
O

U
R

SE
 - 

IN
SI

D
E 

SA
LE

S
1

$2
,7

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$2
,7

00
.0

0
H

ar
dw

ar
e 

U
pf

ro
nt

 B
illi

ng
 +

 P
SO

85
14

4
AX

O
N

 B
O

D
Y 

- P
SO

 - 
ST

AR
TE

R
1

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$0

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
H

ar
dw

ar
e 

U
pf

ro
nt

 B
illi

ng
 +

 P
SO

BW
C

am
TA

P
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
35

($
0.

12
)

$0
.0

0
($

0.
12

)
H

ar
dw

ar
e 

U
pf

ro
nt

 B
illi

ng
 +

 P
SO

H
00

00
1

AB
4 

C
am

er
a 

Bu
nd

le
35

$3
1,

46
5.

00
$2

,8
31

.8
5

$3
4,

29
6.

85
H

ar
dw

ar
e 

U
pf

ro
nt

 B
illi

ng
 +

 P
SO

H
00

00
2

AB
4 

M
ul

ti 
Ba

y 
D

oc
k 

Bu
nd

le
4

$6
,5

55
.6

0
$5

90
.0

1
$7

,1
45

.6
1

Ye
ar

 1
Ba

si
cL

ic
en

se
Ba

si
c 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
35

$6
,8

25
.0

0
$6

14
.2

5
$7

,4
39

.2
5

Ye
ar

 1
BW

C
am

M
BD

TA
P

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

4
$3

,0
00

.9
5

$2
70

.0
9

$3
,2

71
.0

4
Ye

ar
 1

BW
C

am
TA

P
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
35

$1
4,

19
6.

03
$1

,2
77

.6
4

$1
5,

47
3.

67
Ye

ar
 1

C
00

02
4

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

35
$3

6,
39

7.
22

$3
,2

09
.1

9
$3

9,
60

6.
41

Ye
ar

 1
Pr

oL
ic

en
se

Pr
o 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
1

$5
85

.0
0

$5
2.

65
$6

37
.6

5
To

ta
l

$1
11

,7
24

.6
8

$8
,8

45
.6

8
$1

20
,5

70
.3

6

Ja
n 

20
26

In
vo

ic
e 

Pl
an

Ite
m

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Q
ty

Su
bt

ot
al

Ta
x

To
ta

l
In

vo
ic

e 
U

po
n 

Fu
lfi

llm
en

t
BW

C
am

M
BD

TA
P

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

4
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

To
ta

l
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

D
ec

 2
02

6
In

vo
ic

e 
Pl

an
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

ty
Su

bt
ot

al
Ta

x
To

ta
l

Ye
ar

 2
Ba

si
cL

ic
en

se
Ba

si
c 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
35

$6
,8

25
.0

0
$6

14
.2

5
$7

,4
39

.2
5

Ye
ar

 2
BW

C
am

M
BD

TA
P

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

4
$3

,0
00

.9
5

$2
70

.0
9

$3
,2

71
.0

4
Ye

ar
 2

BW
C

am
TA

P
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
35

$1
4,

19
6.

03
$1

,2
77

.6
4

$1
5,

47
3.

67
Ye

ar
 2

C
00

02
4

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

35
$3

6,
39

7.
20

$3
,2

09
.1

9
$3

9,
60

6.
39

Ye
ar

 2
Pr

oL
ic

en
se

Pr
o 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
1

$5
85

.0
0

$5
2.

65
$6

37
.6

5
To

ta
l

$6
1,

00
4.

18
$5

,4
23

.8
2

$6
6,

42
8.

00

D
ec

 2
02

7
In

vo
ic

e
Pl

an
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

ty
Su

bt
ot

al
Ta

x
To

ta
l

Ye
ar

 3
Ba

si
cL

ic
en

se
Ba

si
c 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
35

$6
,8

25
.0

0
$6

14
.2

5
$7

,4
39

.2
5

Ye
ar

 3
BW

C
am

M
BD

TA
P

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

4
$3

,0
00

.9
5

$2
70

.0
9

$3
,2

71
.0

4
Ye

ar
 3

BW
C

am
TA

P
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
35

$1
4,

19
6.

03
$1

,2
77

.6
4

$1
5,

47
3.

67
Ye

ar
 3

C
00

02
4

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

35
$3

6,
39

7.
20

$3
,2

09
.1

9
$3

9,
60

6.
39

Ye
ar

 3
Pr

oL
ic

en
se

Pr
o 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
1

$5
85

.0
0

$5
2.

65
$6

37
.6

5
To

ta
l

$6
1,

00
4.

18
$5

,4
23

.8
2

$6
6,

42
8.

00



Pa
ge

 7
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

D
ec

 2
02

8
In

vo
ic

e 
Pl

an
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

ty
Su

bt
ot

al
Ta

x
To

ta
l

Ye
ar

 4
Ba

si
cL

ic
en

se
Ba

si
c 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
35

$6
,8

25
.0

0
$6

14
.2

5
$7

,4
39

.2
5

Ye
ar

 4
BW

C
am

M
BD

TA
P

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

4
$3

,0
00

.9
5

$2
70

.0
9

$3
,2

71
.0

4
Ye

ar
 4

BW
C

am
TA

P
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
35

$1
4,

19
6.

03
$1

,2
77

.6
4

$1
5,

47
3.

67
Ye

ar
 4

C
00

02
4

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

35
$3

6,
39

7.
20

$3
,2

09
.1

9
$3

9,
60

6.
39

Ye
ar

 4
Pr

oL
ic

en
se

Pr
o 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
1

$5
85

.0
0

$5
2.

65
$6

37
.6

5
To

ta
l

$6
1,

00
4.

18
$5

,4
23

.8
2

$6
6,

42
8.

00

D
ec

 2
02

9
In

vo
ic

e 
Pl

an
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Q

ty
Su

bt
ot

al
Ta

x
To

ta
l

Ye
ar

 5
Ba

si
cL

ic
en

se
Ba

si
c 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
35

$6
,8

25
.0

0
$6

14
.2

5
$7

,4
39

.2
5

Ye
ar

 5
BW

C
am

M
BD

TA
P

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
C

am
er

a 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
y 

D
oc

k 
TA

P 
Bu

nd
le

4
$3

,0
00

.9
5

$2
70

.0
7

$3
,2

71
.0

2
Ye

ar
 5

BW
C

am
TA

P
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

C
am

er
a 

TA
P 

Bu
nd

le
35

$1
4,

19
6.

03
$1

,2
77

.6
3

$1
5,

47
3.

66
Ye

ar
 5

C
00

02
4

BU
N

D
LE

 - 
TA

SE
R

 1
0 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

35
$3

6,
39

7.
20

$3
,2

09
.1

5
$3

9,
60

6.
35

Ye
ar

 5
Pr

oL
ic

en
se

Pr
o 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Bu
nd

le
1

$5
85

.0
0

$5
2.

65
$6

37
.6

5
To

ta
l

$6
1,

00
4.

18
$5

,4
23

.7
5

$6
6,

42
7.

93
 



Pa
ge

 8
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

Ta
x 

is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ra

te
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

t d
at

e 
of

 q
uo

te
 a

nd
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

at
 ti

m
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

in
g.

 If
 a

 ta
x 

ex
em

pt
io

n 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

pp
lie

d,
 p

le
as

e 
su

bm
it 

pr
io

r t
o 

in
vo

ic
in

g.
 

C
on

tra
ct

 O
m

ni
a 

C
on

tra
ct

 3
54

4-
21

-4
61

5 
is

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 b
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
in

to
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 th
is

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f c
on

fli
ct

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 A
xo

n'
s 

M
as

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

Pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
go

ve
rn

. 

St
an

da
rd

 T
er

m
s 

an
d 

C
on

di
tio

ns

Ax
on

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

In
c.

 S
al

es
 T

er
m

s 
an

d 
C

on
di

tio
ns

Ax
on

 M
as

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

Pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t:

Th
is

 Q
uo

te
 is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

nd
 c

on
di

tio
na

l u
po

n 
yo

ur
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 s

et
 fo

rth
 h

er
ei

n 
an

d 
Ax

on
’s

 M
as

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

Pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
(p

os
te

d 
at

 h
tt
ps
://
w
w
w
.a
xo
n.
co
m
/s
al
es
-t
er
m
s-
an
d-
co
nd
iti
on
s)

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f W
or

k 
(S

O
W

) f
or

 A
xo

n 
Fl

ee
t a

nd
/o

r A
xo

n 
In

te
rv

ie
w

 
R

oo
m

 p
ur

ch
as

e,
 if

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
. I

n 
th

e 
ev

en
t y

ou
 a

nd
 A

xo
n 

ha
ve

 e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 a
 p

rio
r a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

go
ve

rn
 a

ll 
fu

tu
re

 p
ur

ch
as

es
, t

ha
t a

gr
ee

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
go

ve
rn

 to
 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 it

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
ts

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
be

in
g 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
an

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
Ax

on
 C

us
to

m
er

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 A

pp
en

di
x 

as
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 b
el

ow
.

 A
C

EI
P:

   
   

   
   

Th
e 

Ax
on

 C
us

to
m

er
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 A
pp

en
di

x,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

sh
ar

in
g 

of
 d

e-
id

en
tif

ie
d 

se
gm

en
ts

 o
f A

ge
nc

y 
C

on
te

nt
 w

ith
 A

xo
n 

to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

ne
w

 p
ro

du
ct

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
yo

ur
 p

ro
du

ct
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
(p

os
te

d 
at

 w
w

w
.a

xo
n.

co
m

/le
ga

l/s
al

es
-te

rm
s-

an
d-

co
nd

iti
on

s)
, i

s 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
by

 
re

fe
re

nc
e.

 B
y 

si
gn

in
g 

be
lo

w
, y

ou
 a

gr
ee

 to
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
Ax

on
 C

us
to

m
er

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
.

Ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f T
er

m
s:

An
y 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
rd

er
 is

su
ed

 in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
is

 Q
uo

te
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 s
ol

el
y 

to
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 B

y 
si

gn
in

g 
be

lo
w

, y
ou

 re
pr

es
en

t t
ha

t y
ou

 
ar

e 
la

w
fu

lly
 a

bl
e 

to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 c
on

tra
ct

s.
 If

 y
ou

 a
re

 s
ig

ni
ng

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 a
n 

en
tit

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 th
e 

co
m

pa
ny

, m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

, o
r g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
ge

nc
y 

fo
r w

ho
m

 y
ou

 w
or

k)
, y

ou
 re

pr
es

en
t t

o 
Ax

on
 th

at
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

le
ga

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 b
in

d 
th

at
 e

nt
ity

. I
f y

ou
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
th

is
 a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 p
le

as
e 

do
 n

ot
 s

ig
n 

th
is

 Q
uo

te
.



Pa
ge

 9
Q

-6
59

27
1-

45
91

7Z
A

\s
1\

\d
1\

 S
ig

na
tu

re
D

at
e 

Si
gn

ed

9/
17

/2
02

5

 







1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

ORDINANCE NUMBER O-2025-28 

AN ORDINANCE OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

AN ORDINANCE OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL TO AMEND JASPER 
COUNTY ORDINANCE O-2024-13, THE FISCAL YEAR 2025 JASPER 
COUNTY BUDGET, TO PROVIDE FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE 
BUDGET AND TO CARRYOVER APPROVED LAPSING FUNDS TO 
FISCAL YEAR 2026; TO AMEND JASPER COUNTY ORDINANCE O-
2025-14, THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 JASPER COUNTY BUDGET, TO 
PROVIDE FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET RESULTING FROM 
THE CARRYOVER OF APPROVED LAPSING FUNDS FROM FISCAL 
YEAR 2025; TO AMEND CERTAIN REVENUE ITEMS; TO 
INCORPORATE THE RECLASSIFICATION OF CERTAIN LINE ITEMS, 
TO AMEND FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 EXPENDITURES, THE 
INCLUSION OF ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS, AND MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, Jasper County Council approved the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
Operating and Capital Budget Ordinance pursuant to Ordinance O-2024-13 on 
June 3, 2024, and 

WHEREAS, Jasper County Council approved the Fiscal Year 2025 – 2026 
Operating and Capital Budget Ordinance pursuant to Ordinance O-2025-14 on 
June 30, 2025, and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance O-2024-13 includes in Section 10 thereof provisions 
addressing the Lapsing of Funds and Continuing of Appropriations for 
Subsequent Year, and 

WHEREAS, Section 10 of Ordinance O-2024-13 provides that specific items 
budgeted in the 2024-2025 fiscal year, for which unforeseen circumstances 
prevented the funds from being spent during the current year, may be carryover 
appropriation into the next succeeding fiscal year with the approval of the County 
Administrator and County Council, and  

WHEREAS, in order to more clearly reflect the amounts expended, line items 
related to departmental cost-of-living increases and new personnel should be 
reclassified to salary and wages or part-time salaries, and  

WHEREAS, Council may approve transfers of funds throughout the fiscal year, 
and  

WHEREAS, those transfers must be recognized and ratified as authorized by 
Section 7 of Ordinance 2024-13.; and 



2 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the following budget 
amendments and carryover appropriations set forth in the Sections of Exhibit A 
listed below be made to the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and Fiscal Year 2025-2026 
Jasper County Operating and Capital Budgets, in the following manner: 
 
Revenue.  Budget Amendment regarding the reduction of the Cash Carry 
Forward in GENERAL REVENUES for fiscal year 2025 and the increase of the 
Cash Carry Forward in GENERAL REVENUES for fiscal year 2026 to off-set 
increases for carry-forward funds from fiscal year 2026 and increases resulting 
from increased expenditures and appropriations.    
 
Section 1. Budget Amendment regarding Carry Over Appropriations and 
Lapsing Funds.  The following adjustments are made to the 2024-2025 Fiscal 
Year Budget and the listed budget items are added to the 2025-2026 Fiscal Year 
Budget. See Exhibit A and Exhibit B.   
 
Section 2. Budget Amendment regarding the reclassification of expenditures, 
including COST-OF-LIVING INCREASES, NEW PERSONNEL, POLICE 
OFFICER RETIREMENT and S.C. RETIREMENT to the appropriate SALARY 
AND WAGE, PART-TIME SALARY budget line items, FICA-EMPLOYER or 
RETIRMENT budget line items.  See Exhibit B.    
 
Section 3.  Budget Amendments for fiscal year 2026 expenditures and 
appropriations. See Exhibit B. 
 
Section 4. Revision of Fiscal Year 2026 Fee Schedule to revise rental hours for 
community centers and picnic shelters and adding an additional $50 rental fee 
for non-Jasper County residents. See Exhibit C.  
 
Section 4. Provisions of ordinances previously adopted by the County Council, 
which are not consistent with this Ordinance 0-2025-28 are deemed superseded. 
 
Section 5. If any section, clause, paragraph, sentence or phrase of this 
ordinance, or application thereof any person or circumstances must, for any 
reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional. The invalid section, clause 
paragraph, sentence, phrase or application shall no way affect the remainder of 
this ordinance: and is hereby declared to be the intention of the County Council 
that the remainder of this ordinance would have passed notwithstanding the 
invalidity or unconstitutionality of any section, clause paragraph, sentence or 
phrase thereof. 
 
Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council. 
 
 

        
Jasper County Council  
 

 
     BY:  _________________________ 



3 

       John A. Kemp, Chairman 
 
           
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _________________________ 
       Wanda H. Giles,   
       Clerk to Council 
 
First Reading:      9/15/2025  
Second Reading: 10/06/2025 
Public Hearings: 10/06/2025  
Adopted:   
 
 
Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.  
      
_______________________________________                  __________________ 
County Attorney       Date 













Exhibit C Page 1 of  2

Jasper County
Budget Ordinance

Fee Schedule 
Fiscal Year 2025-2026

Department Fee Description FY 26 FY 26 AMENDMENT
All Departments Returned Check Fee  (in addition to bank returned check fee) 35.00$                      35.00$                          

Copy Fee (per page, 8-1/2 " x 11") 0.50$                        0.50$                            
Certified Letter for returned checks (in addition to postage) 10.00$                      10.00$                          

Assessor 8-1/2" x 11" Map 3.00$                        3.00$                            
11" x 17" Map 4.00$                        4.00$                            
24" x 36" Map without aerials 15.00$                      15.00$                          
24" x 36" Map with aerials 20.00$                      20.00$                          
Manufactured home decal 5.00$                        5.00$                            

Coroner Autopsy Report 100.00$                    100.00$                        
Toxicology Report 25.00$                      25.00$                          
Cremation Permit 20.00$                      20.00$                          
Coroner's Report 10.00$                      10.00$                          

Public Works Container rentals (dismantlers, retailers) 300.00$                    300.00$                        
Culverts $11.00/ft. plus tax (per joint) 113.36$                    113.36$                        
Dirt (self load) per yard -$                                       -$                                             

Dirt (loaded) per yard -$                                       -$                                             

Register of Deeds Copy - Plat, Arch D - 26" x 36" (per page) 3.00$                        3.00$                            
Copy - Plat, Tabloid - (per page) 1.00$                        1.00$                            
Copy - Plat, 8-1/2" x 11" (per page) 0.50$                        0.50$                            
Copy - Deeds, Mortgages, Power of Attorney, etc. (per page) 0.50$                        0.50$                            

Certified Copies - $1.00 per page and $2.00 to certify Certified Copies - $1.00 per 
page and $10.00 to certify

Certified Copies - $1.00 per 
page and $10.00 to certify

Tax Collector Rollover from current to delinquent 10.00$                      10.00$                          
Certified mailings, each 20.00$                      20.00$                          
Posting of property, per property 35.00$                      35.00$                          
Advertising properties, per property (published in local newspaper for three 
consecutive weeks prior to tax sale) 10.00$                      10.00$                          

Deed Preparation Fee 250.00$                    250.00$                        
Bidder Registration Fee 25.00$                      25.00$                          
Bidder Default Fee 500.00$                    500.00$                        

Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport (3J1)
Hours of Operation:  Sun - Sat 8AM - 

6PM Fuel (Aviation Gasoline), Full-Service Commodity Pricing Commodity Pricing

Fuel (Jet-A), Full-Service Commodity Pricing Commodity Pricing
After Hours Fees (Prior Notice Requested) 200.00$                    200.00$                        
Crew/Pax Transport Fee (Flat Rate) 80.00$                      80.00$                          
Daily Outdoor Basing Fee Grass (Piston) 10.00$                      10.00$                          
Monthly Outdoor Basing Fee Grass (Piston) 60.00$                      60.00$                          
Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Single-Engine Piston) 120.00$                    120.00$                        
Monthly Outdoor Basing Fee (Aircraft in Transport Trailer) 110.00$                    110.00$                        
Monthly Outdoor Basing Fee (Pole Barn, per stall) 70.00$                      70.00$                          
Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Light Piston Twin) 150.00$                    150.00$                        
Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Heavy Piston Twin) 550.00$                    550.00$                        
Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Turbine) 550.00$                    550.00$                        
Daily Ramp Fee (SE Piston), waived with 15-gallon fuel purchase 40.00$                      40.00$                          
Daily Ramp Fee (ME Piston), waived with 20-gallon fuel purchase 70.00$                      70.00$                          
Daily Ramp Fee (Turbine), waived with 60-gallon fuel purchase 140.00$                    140.00$                        
Long-Term Vehicle Parking Fee, Monthly 60.00$                      60.00$                          
Vehicle Parking Fee, Daily 10.00$                      10.00$                          
Hangar Ground Lease Rate (per square foot) Pending Council Approval Pending Council Approval
Ice 7.00$                        7.00$                            
GPU Air Start (Turbine) $65 per start $65 per start
GPU (Piston) $35 per start $35 per start
Airplane Towing (Turbine) $80 per tow $80 per tow
Airplane Towing (Piston) $35 per tow $35 per tow
Lavatory Service $90 per service $90 per service
FBO Conference Room (FBO Customer) No Charge No Charge
Conference Room (Others) $40 per hour $40 per hour

Sargeant Jasper Park (SJP) SJP Banquet Hall (before 6pm)  8am-12pm $300 1pm-5pm 
$300 or All day $500 

 8am-12pm $300 1pm-5pm 
$300 or All day $500 

each additional hour from 6 pm - 10pm 50.00$                      50.00$                          
SJP Picnic Shelter (before 6pm) 150.00$                    150.00$                        

each additional hour from 6 pm - 10pm 50.00$                      50.00$                          
SJP Gazebo (before 6pm) 100.00$                    100.00$                        

each additional hour from 6 pm - 10pm 50.00$                      50.00$                          
Innova Disc rentals per Disc 2.00$                        2.00$                            
Discs for Purchase 9.00$                        9.00$                            

Page 1 of 2



Exhibit C Page 2 of  2

Jasper County
Budget Ordinance

Fee Schedule 
Fiscal Year 2025-2026

Department Fee Description FY 26 FY 26 AMENDMENT
Discs for Purchase 10.00$                      10.00$                          
Discs for Purchase 13.00$                      13.00$                          
Fishing per Adult, from age 13 and up, 65 years and older are free 10.00$                      10.00$                          
Fishing per Child 7-12 years old (all day) under 7 free 2.00$                        2.00$                            
Fishing Pass for 6 months 100.00$                    100.00$                        
Fishing Pass yearly 180.00$                    180.00$                        
Kayak/Canoe 1-2 hours per vessel 10.00$                      10.00$                          

Kayak/Canoe rental, each additional hour 5.00$                        5.00$                            
Life Vest Rental 5.00$                        5.00$                            
Refundable Deposit 200.00$                    200.00$                        

Parks & Recreation Community Centers 1-4 hours (Levy Limehouse, Tillman-Wagon Branch, Tarboro, 
and Roberstville) 8am-6pm $300 10am-8pm $300

Community Center, each additional hour after 4 hours (up to 10pm) After 6pm $50 per hour  Add. Hours 8pm- 10 pm $50 
per hour 

Picnic Shelters at Small Community Parks 1-4 hours (Grays Hill and Cherry Hill) 100.00$                    10am-8pm $100

Picnic Shelters, each additional hour after 4 hours After 6pm $50
 Add. Hours 8pm- 10 pm $50 

per hour 
Refundable Deposit 200.00$                    200.00$                        

Fields and Courts--Baseball, Softball, Soccer and Basketball (all day)  Includes the 
following:  Airport Field, Cherry Hill Park Field, Tarboro Fields, Mitchellville Court, 
Coosawatchie Fields, JYRB Field, Kleckley Field, Tillman Wagon Branch, 
Robertville, and Levy. 

100.00$                    100.00$                        

Non-Jasper County Residents an additional rental fee 50.00$                          

Page 2 of 2





1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

) AGREEMENT FOR MEDICAL DIRECTOR 

COUNTY OF JASPER  )   SERVICES 

 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR MEDICAL DIRECTOR SERVICES (the “Agreement”) is 

effective and entered into October ____, 2025 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the JASPER 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”) on behalf of the Jasper County Emergency 

Services Department (“JCESD”) and SECREST SUTHERLAND, MD (“Contractor”) (together, 

the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, County is required by South Carolina law and the regulations of the South 

Carolina Department of Public Health (“SCDPH”) to have one or more Medical Control 

Physicians (“MCP”) to oversee operations, patient care and protocols of JCESD; and 

WHEREAS, County desires to retain a physician as an independent contractor, to serve as 

the MCP for JCESD; and 

WHEREAS, the County, acting through the Jasper County Council as its governing body 

(the “Council”), has appropriated funding in the County’s current fiscal year budget to compensate 

Contractor for the Services (as defined below) in accordance with Section 8 of this Agreement, 

and plans to sustain such compensation to the extent funding is appropriated by the Council in 

future budget years; and  

 

WHERAS, the County is of the opinion that the Contractor has the necessary 

qualifications, experience, and abilities to provide the Services required; and 

 

WHERAS, the Contractor is agreeable to providing the Services on the terms and 

conditions set out in this Agreement; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants, 

representations, and warranties contained in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is acknowledged by the Parties, it is agreed as follows: 

SECTION ONE: Scope of Services and Duties 

Contractor shall act as MCP for JCESD. Contractor shall provide medical expertise in emergency 

medical services as required by SCDPH, including the following (the “Services”): 

A. Assist in the development and monitoring for JCESD personnel at the Paramedic, 

Advanced, Intermediate, Basic Emergency Medical Technician and Emergency 

Medical Responder levels; 

B. Act as an advisor to JCESD staff with regards to all JCESD training programs; 

C. Assist in the development of medical control in the pre-hospital phase of patient care; 



2 

 

D. Assist in the development and implementation of plans and treatment protocols for the 

pre-hospital phase of patient care; 

E. Assist in the development and implementation of the medical aspects of a countywide 

disaster program; 

F. Assist in the development and implementation of a continuous quality improvement 

program and continually evaluate the quality of care offered by JCESD;  

G. Make recommendations, where needed, necessary or appropriate, to the JCESD 

director for administrative action; 

H. Assist in the development, implementation, operation, and review of an emergency 

medical dispatch program; and  

I. Address all issues that concern the roles of the MCP; and  

SECTION TWO:  Contractor’s Warranties and Representations 

Contractor warrants and represents that: (i) she is a physician; (ii) she is licensed to practice 

medicine in the State of South Carolina; (iii) she is Board Certified in Emergency Medicine, 

Family Medicine, or Internal Medicine; and (iv) all work performed as a result of this Agreement 

will be performed in a professional manner and in compliance with all Federal, State, and local 

laws and regulations governing the practice of medicine. 

SECTION THREE:  Independent Contractor Relationship 

Contractor is an independent contractor and  shall not be deemed to be an employee of the 

County for any purpose whatsoever. Contactor shall not hold herself out as an employee of the 

County and shall have no power or authority to bind or obligate the County in any manner.  

Contractor shall obtain and maintain all licenses and permits required by law for her to perform 

this Agreement. Contractor shall be liable for and pay all taxes required by local, State or Federal 

governments, including but not limited to Social Security, workmen’s compensation, employment 

security, and any other taxes and licenses or insurance premiums required by law. The County 

shall pay no employee benefits or insurance premiums of any kind to or for the benefit of 

Contractor. 

Contractor shall provide County with her tax identification number so that the County may 

issue a Form 1099 for each tax year covered by this Agreement. 

SECTION FOUR:  Insurance Requirements 

Contractor, at her sole expense, shall purchase the following insurance coverage, keep it in 

full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement, and provide evidence of the same to 

the Director of JCEDS: (i) professional liability and general liability insurance, including coverage 

specific for EMS Medical Directors of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and 

$3,000,000.00 aggregate per annum, and (ii) workers’ compensation insurance as required by the 



3 

 

laws of the State of South Carolina for all of its employees engaged in the performance of services 

under this Agreement. 

SECTION FIVE:  Indemnification and Hold Harmless 

Except for expenses or liabilities arising from the acts of the County, the Contractor hereby 

expressly agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless against any and all expenses and 

liabilities arising out of the performance or default of this Contract as follows:  

(i) Contractor expressly agrees to the extent that her negligence in whole or in part, by 

her acts or omissions, results in any damage, liability, injury, loss or expense 

(whether in connection with bodily injury or death or property damage or loss) that 

is suffered by the County and its employees or by any member of the public, to 

indemnify and save the County and its employees harmless against any and all 

liabilities, penalties, demands, claims, lawsuits, losses, damages, costs, and 

expenses arising out of the performance or default of this Contract. Such costs are 

to include defense, settlement and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by the county 

and its employees. 

(ii) This promise to indemnify shall include bodily injuries or death occurring to the 

County’s employees, the employees of any other independent contractors, or 

occurring to any member of the public. When the County submits notice, 

Contractor shall promptly defend any aforementioned action. 

SECTION SIX:  Ownership of Records 

All accounts, records, and information relating to services provided by Contractor (including, but 

not limited to, medical records and administrative records) are owned by County and shall be 

returned to County upon the termination or cancellation of this Agreement.  

SECTION SEVEN:  Term 

The term of this Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and continue until June 30, 

2026 (the “Initial Agreement Term”) or any future Agreement Term (as defined below), unless 

otherwise terminated as provided herein. This Agreement shall automatically extend for successive 

one-year terms beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on June 30 of the following year so 

long as (i) funding sufficient to pay compensation contemplated by this Agreement is included in 

the budget approved by Council for the applicable fiscal year; and (ii) neither party has provided 

notice of termination by March 1 of each applicable one year term (the Initial Agreement Term, 

and any subsequent renewal term are referred to herein as the “Agreement Term”).  

Prior to any such renewal of an Agreement Term, the Parties may renegotiate the 

compensation described below. Any agreed upon changes to compensation shall be considered a 

supplement to this Agreement if signed in writing by both Parties.  

 

 



4 

 

SECTION EIGHT:  Compensation 

County shall pay Contractor for all services at a flat rate of Three-Thousand two hundred 

fifty Dollars ($3,250.00) per month for each calendar month commencing October 12, 2025 and 

continuing through the Agreement Term. Payment will be made monthly after the first month. A 

separate lump sum payment of $6,000.00 will be paid by November 1st of each year. Additionally, 

Contractor may be reimbursed up to Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) annually for costs, mileage 

and per diem to attend required medical training. 

SECTION NINE:  Termination of Agreement 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party without cause, provided however, the 

party desiring said termination gives the other party sixty (60) days written notice prior to the 

effective date of said termination. 

SECTION TEN:  Miscellaneous 

A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding 

between the Parties with respect to the subject matters herein, and supersedes and 

replaces any prior agreements and understandings, whether oral or written between 

them with respect to such matters. The provisions of this Agreement may be waived, 

altered, amended, or repealed in whole or in part only upon the written consent of both 

Parties. 

 

B. Title and Subtitles. The titles of the sections and subsections of this Agreement and any 

exhibits are for the convenience of reference only and are not to be considered in 

construing this Agreement. 

 

C. No Implied Waivers. The failure of either party at any time to require performance by 

the other party of any provision hereof shall not affect in any way the right to require 

such performance at any time thereafter, nor shall the waiver by either party of a breach 

of any provision hereof be taken or held to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 

same provision or any other provision. 

 

D. Personal Services. It is understood that the services to be performed by Contractor 

hereunder are personal in nature and the obligations to perform such services and the 

conditions and covenants of this Agreement cannot be assigned by Contractor. Subject 

to the foregoing, and except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall inure 

to the benefit of and bind the successors and assigns of the County. 

 

E. Severability. If for any reason any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to 

be invalid or inoperative, the validity and effect of the other provisions hereof shall not 

be affected thereby, provided that no such severability shall be effective if it causes a 

material detriment to any party. 

 

F. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of South Carolina, applicable to contracts between South 



5 

 

Carolina residents, entered and to be performed entirely within the State of South 

Carolina. 

 

G. Duplicates. This Agreement may be executed in duplicate originals and in several   

counterparts, and all of which duplicate originals and counterpart originals when taken 

together shall constitute the Agreement in its entirety. 

 

H. Notice. Any notice given in connection with this Agreement shall be given in writing 

and delivered in person, by US mail, email or other responsive electronic means, as 

provided below. If any person listed below is no longer the appropriate notice recipient, 

the person then hold the appropriate office for each of the Parties shall become the 

applicable notice recipient.  

County: 

Jasper County 

Attention: County Administrator 

  358 Third Avenue, Suite 306-A (In-Person) 

PO Box 1149 (Mail) 

  Ridgeland, SC 29936 

            Phone: 843-717-3690 
afulghum@jaspercountysc.gov 

 

Contractor: 

 

      Attention:  

      Address: ______________________________________ 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Phone: _______________________________________ 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  



6 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

written above.  

 

COUNTY OF JASPER, SOUTH CAROLINA    

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Name: Andrew Fulghum 

Its:  County Administrator       

 

Date:______________________________________ 

 

CONTRACTOR                                                                        

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Name: Secrest Sutherland, MD 

 

Date:______________________________________ 

 

 



 

Jasper County Emergency Services 
1509 Grays Hwy (P.O.B. 1509) 

Ridgeland, SC 29936 

Office: 843-726-7607 Fax: 843-726-7966 
Chief Russell W. Wells, Director              Deputy Chief Darran Vaughn  

6, October 2025 

 

To: Honorable Jasper County Council 

 

Re: Medical Control Physician Contract: Annual Renewal 

 

 

Greetings Honorable County Council, 

Jasper County Emergency Services humbly requests the administrator be empowered to sign the annual 

agreement/renewal agreement for our Medical Control Physician. This is a budgeted item. The contract is a 

statutory mandate for Jasper County Emergency Services to provide Emergency Medical Services. Again, this 

is an annually budgeted item.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

          Sincerely, 

 

 

 

          Chief Russell W. Wells 





 Page 1 of 1 

Jasper County  
Finance Department 
358 Third Avenue, Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Phone (843) 717-3692   Fax (843) 717-3626 

    Kimberly Burgess, CPA, CGFO 
Director, Administrative Services Division 
kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov 

Jasper County Council 
Consideration and Acceptance of 

Bid for the Replacement of 
Fire Station #30 Garage Doors 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2025 

Subject:  Consideration and acceptance of the bid provided by Contract Building Systems, LLC, 
in the amount of $42,700 for the replacement of garage doors at Jasper County 
Fire Station #30, 1511 Grays Hwy., Ridgeland, SC     

Recommendation: Approve and accept the bid provided by Contract Building Systems, LLC and 
authorize the County Administrator to negotiate and execute all necessary agreements 
for the project.    

Description: Jasper County advertised for the supply and installation of three (30) commercial-grade 
garage doors with automatic openers with a bid due of Thursday, September 11, 2025, at 2:00 PM.  The 
scope of work provided for a turnkey delivery which required that the project must be delivered as a 
turnkey installation, fully operational and accepted by Jasper County upon completion.  Two bids were 
received timely. However, only Contract Building Systems, LLC, met the turnkey delivery requirement.  

Recommendation: Staff recommend that the Council accept the bid submitted Contract Building 
Systems, LLC for replacement of three (3) garage doors at Jasper County Fire Station #30, 1511 Grays 
Hwy., Ridgeland, SC, and to authorize the County Administrator to execute documents necessary for this 
project.  The budget line item for the expenditure is BUILDING REPAIRS 010-046-5095. 

Attachments: 
Contract Building Systems, LLC bid 
Hilton Head Garage Doors Bid 
Bid Sheet  
Public Advertisement—SCBO 
Invitation to Bid #2025-10 

mailto:kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov






















From: Catherine Culbreth
To: Kimberly Burgess
Subject: FW: SCBO Advertisement Submission
Date: Thursday, September 25, 2025 2:57:58 PM

From: noreply@mmo.sc.gov <noreply@mmo.sc.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, August 21, 2025 1:23 PM
To: Catherine Culbreth <cculbreth@jaspercountysc.gov>
Subject: SCBO Advertisement Submission

Your SCBO advertisement (AD# 59953) has been submitted and will be reviewed by a
member of our staff prior to publication. Please retain a copy of this email to serve as a receipt
of your ad submission.

Please note that ads submitted after 12:00 pm may not be reviewed/published until the
next business day.

The information you submitted for the advertisement is included below:

Category: Minor Construction

Advertisement Date: 2025-08-21 00:00:00

Project Name: Garage Doors for Fire Rescue Station 30

Project Number: IVTB #2025-10

Project Location: Ridgeland, SC

Description of Project/Services:
Jasper County, is seeking sealed bids for SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION OF THREE (3)
COMMERCIAL-GRADE GARAGE DOORS WITH AUTOMATIC OPENERS at Station 30,
1511 Grays Highway, Ridgeland, SC 29936

Quote Due Date/Time: 2025-09-11 14:00:00

Construction Cost Range: $10,000-$100,000

mailto:cculbreth@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov


Agency Project Coordinator: Shannon Smith

Email: ssmith@jaspercountysc.gov

Telephone: 843-726-7607

Project Details: http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/services/bids-and-solicitations/

Ad Creation Date: Thu, 08/21/2025 - 13:13

mailto:ssmith@jaspercountysc.gov
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/services/bids-and-solicitations/


NOTICE OF INVITATION TO BID 

IVTB #2025-10 

STA 30 GARAGE DOORS 

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

AUGUST 19, 2025 

 
 

 

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be received for supply and installation of 

three (3) commercial-grade garage doors with automatic openers by Jasper County, 

South Carolina, (the “County”) until Thursday, September 11, 2025, at 2:00 P.M. at 

which time all bids received will be publicly opened and read aloud in the Jasper County 

Council Chambers.  

 

To be deemed “received” a bid may be submitted electronically through the County’s 

Vendor Registry webpage to ensure that it remains sealed until the scheduled bid opening 

date and time.  A link to Jasper County’s Vendor Registry webpage may be found under 

Bids & Solicitations, on the County’s website at www.jaspercountysc.gov.  A bid may 

also be submitted to Kimberly Burgess, Director of Administrative Services, at the 

Clementa C. Pinckney, Jasper County Government Building, 358 3rd Avenue, Post Office 

Box 1149, Ridgeland, SC 29936, prior to the bid opening day and time. Bids delivered 

within the 30-minute period immediately preceding bid opening (as described above) 

must be hand delivered to the Director of Administrative Services office in the Jasper 

County Government Building. Bids received after the bid date and time will remain 

unopened.  

 

The bid opening will take place in Jasper County Council Chambers at the address below: 

 

Clementa C. Pinckney 

Jasper County Government Building 

358 3rd Avenue, Third Floor 

Ridgeland, SC 29936 

 

The County’s point of contact for this project is Battalion Chief Shannon Smith, who can 

be reached at (843) 726-7607, (843) 305-0265, or ssmith@jaspercountysc.gov.    

 

 

LOCATION 

Jasper County Fire Rescue Station 30 

1511 Grays Highway 

Ridgeland, SC 29936 

 

http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/


NOTICE OF INVITATION TO BID 

IVTB #2025-10 

STA 30 GARAGE DOORS 

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

AUGUST 19, 2025 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Provide all materials, labor, equipment, and supervision for the following: 

 

1. Garage Doors 

• Furnish and install two (2) doors: 16’ (width) x 16’ (height) 

• Furnish and install one (1) door: 12’ (width) x 12’ (height) 

• All doors shall be constructed of steel roll-up paneling. 

• All doors shall be installed with brush door seals. 

 

2. Automatic Door Openers 

• Openers shall be jackshaft configuration rated for the appropriate door size and 

weight. 

• Each door shall include: 

o Minimum three (3) remote controls 

o Commercial wall-mounted opener switches 

o Safety-compliant closure sensors meeting current OSHA/ANSI/UL 

industrial standards. 

 

3. Electrical Requirements 

• Contractor shall provide all wiring, conduit, electrical connections, breakers, 

and controls necessary for a fully operational system. 

• All electrical work shall comply with National Electrical Code (NEC), state, and 

local requirements. 

 

4. Turnkey Delivery 

• The project must be delivered as a turnkey installation, fully operational and 

accepted by Jasper County upon completion. 

 

5. Warranty 

• Minimum one (1) year warranty on all parts, materials, and labor. 

 

 

Jobsite shall be left in a neat and orderly fashion. 

 

All bids should include any job-related permits, fees, and South Carolina and local sales 

tax (9%).  



NOTICE OF INVITATION TO BID 

IVTB #2025-10 

STA 30 GARAGE DOORS 

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

AUGUST 19, 2025 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The successful Bidder shall be required to provide proof of insurance in the following 

amounts:  

a. Workers' Compensation - The vendor shall provide coverage for its employees 

with statutory workers' compensation limits, and no less than $1,000,000.00 for 

Employers' Liability. Said coverage shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of 

the OWNER and its agents, employees and officials. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability - The vendor shall provide coverage for all 

operations including, but not limited to Contractual, Products and Completed 

Operations, and Personal Injury. The limits shall be no less than $ I,000,000.00, 

per occurrence, with a 

$2,000,000.00 aggregate. 

 

c. Business Automobile Liability - The vendor shall provide coverage for all 

owner, nonowner, and hired vehicles with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00, 

per occurrence, Combined Single Limits (CSL) or its equivalent. 

 

 

BID REQUIREMENTS 

Bids should be on company letterhead or a document providing the company name, 

address, and phone number.   

 

All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty (30) days after the day of the Bid 

opening. The County of Jasper (Owner) reserves the right to reject any or all bids, 

including without limitation the right to reject any or all non-conforming, non-responsive, 

unbalanced, or conditional bids. Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities 

not involving price, time or changes in the work and to negotiate contract terms with the 

Successful Bidder.     

 

 

 















































Comments and 


	cee26a9b-a227-4c04-a3ca-878e78a015c9.pdf
	Fee Schedule Worksheet Revision.pdf
	Sheet1



